EXHIBIT S

CHRISDAVIS000132
Docket 68542 Document 2015-30548



Electronically Filed
08/28/2015 12:56:50 PM

HARRIET H ROLAND, ESQ. ZE i

NV Bar Np. 3471 CLERK OF THE COURT
ROLAND Law FiRM
2470 £ 81 Rose Plwy, Ste, 105
Henderson, \ VoORSOT4
Telephone: (702 452-1500
Faosimile: -';"f’r 12 9248903
{hroland@rolandlawfinm.com

NTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.
Neva-'ia Bar NMo. 8366
TIFFANY S R2 F‘\L‘:,Lxu
Nevada Bar f‘v:_ o, 9754
AW{(}W L. Barney, Lo
3317 W, Charleston Blvd,, Suite |
Las.' Yegas, NV 89102
Telephone: (702 4387878
i Facsimile: 7?2\;2 01116
12 office@anthonybarney.com
Attorneys jor Christapher D Davis

e NS S « ST %2 B ¥ T . SR

Jei
3 i

131

v,

L3
14 FIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
15 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

el the matter of

{n the matter of° o
4. Case No.. P-15-083887.1
17

. ) - v am % o N C oYy eps _ : E}’a N ‘t- \,‘:— - :};
18 | The BEATRICE . DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE | Hopt heszo
1o | TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on "

Febroary 24, 2014,

20

21

22

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS' MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER ANR TO
24 . QUASH OR MODIFY THE SUBPOENA

CHRISTORHER DL DAVIS ("Christopher™), by and through his attorneys HARRIET H.

B
£

ROLAND, Esq., of the ROLAND LAW FIRM and ANTHONY L. BARNEY, Esq., of the law

office of ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD., and hereby files bis motion for a protective order, for

M AN
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the cowrt to quash or modify the

pursuant to NRCP 37(a)4

Authoritles attached hereto, any exhibits attached hereto, and any oral argument that will bel

feard 1o this matier.

T

T

TG

DATED this 28% ¢ day of August, 2015,

CAROLINE DAVIS, Petit

ES(., and JOSHUA HOOD, ESGQ., of SOLOMON DWIGGING & FREER, LTD.

LEE HERNANDEZ LANDRLUIM & GAROQFALG

STEPHEN LENHARDT by and through his attorney, JONATHAN W. BARLOW,

{r\

FHT HOLDINGS LILOC

Begistered Agent Solutions, Ino.

Thiz pleading is based on the Memorandum of Points and

LA

DUNHAM TRUST, by and through s sttorney, CHARLENE RENWICK, ESQ., ©

SEL LAW GROUP

A

N
4

subpoens, and for the cowt to award attorney fees and costs

Reapectiuliy Sutunittad,
ROLAN E} L ﬁ& FIRM

———— ) A e

T3
t ‘:\ : e
) s e
Pl . L
{ﬁ{)f ey for Christopher 1. Davis

Resg Q@i‘ﬂ‘ i E’v Stibmitied,

ANT HO\Y L* B, *&RN E_ﬁx L H)

NOTICE OF MOTION

troner, by and through ber atiormevs, MARK SOLOMOIN,

s Nevada Limited Liabihity Company, Respondent through

I'-.)
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the sbove-entitled cowrt will hear CHRISTOPFHER
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187 MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND TO QUASH OR MODIFY THE

¥

g

SUBPOENA at the following date and ime;  September 30, 2015 @ 9:00AM

i ’I(Ai* N
G,

oV,

Time:

11

12

Anthony L. Roeey Beds o
13 AN FHO\E'\' L. i'} tR’\E'& LTi}o
14 3317 W, Charleston Bi x-"\i..Q sudte B3
Las Vegas, ?xs‘y' KQ1G2

15 | Astorreys for Christapher L3 Davis

17

18 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS ANB AUTHORITIES

901 1 FACTS PRESENTED
20

As this court s aware, Christopher 120 Davis has sought reconsideration of this Cowrt’s
2%

a5 order because jurisdiction was mproperly taken by this Court pver the Beatuce B, Davis Famaly

oy i Meritage Trust dated July 28, 2000 (hereinafter “FHTT and "Trust™) based on an improp:

24 llchange of situs and that there are mdispensable parties that have not been jomed by Caroline,
%
L

and if they cannot be jnined, then the procesding nmust be dismissed. He filed his Petition for

=4
fon
4

Reconsideration of the Order Dated May 19, 20135 re: Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over

" : . T T . IO . | oy ey RS '
Beairice R, Davis Family Heritage Trust Dated July 28, 2000, as Ameunded on February 24,
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2614, 10 Assume Junsdiction over Christopher D, Davis as Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen

{ Lehnardt ag rust Advisor, to Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed

s

Trusiee, and for Immediate Disclosure of Documents and Information from Christopher 1

Davis (“Petition for Recousideration™) on July 14, 2015, All facts presented in his Petivion for

Reconsideration arve incorporated herein ay if set forth fully hersin, Caroline Davis ("Caroline™)

then noticed Christopher DL Davis (“Christopher™ for a deposition to be taken on September 3,

2015 at 1300 am, in his alieged role ag Investment Triust Advisor and Manager

fust as Cladstopher {o disputing the alieged jurisdicthion of the Cowrt taken under the May

) 7 Y » ‘-.---.- ~ A YA A ‘-"‘ oy W : }" T o 4t “:‘: ';"’-v" ey Y o
19, 2015 Order, Caroline herself is contesiing the jurisdiction of the Court by the fling of her
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Motion 1o Amend or Mod
recognizes thal taking jorisdiction over the Trust as a constructive trust s clearly erroneous.” A

consiractive trust 13 a remedy for equifable reliel and the court must first take in personar

i

: 3 . : . 3 i . > 1. & .‘" X ‘-'--.':E- i A 'E' -~ \ o 6 "\" '{\"1.. g ,.'.\“
%-‘»-‘:i'isd.i'mm:z o award a construcireg  irast. With Caroline’s FOROE pition of the sncurrest

jurisdiction taken by this Court in its May 19, 2015 Order, the Court clemly does pot have

proper jurisdiction over the Trust, alleged Trust Protector, or alleged Trust Investment Advisor,

Without proper juriadiction and in personam jurisdiction over his person, Christopher iy olearly

- Y U S S S TR SRS SO RS S SR AETEIE A P i OIS
ot requirest 1 obey a subpoena or suomiit © the deposition seheduled for September 3, 2015,

Furthermore, both the Peiition for Reconsideration and Moiton to Amend will be heard

one day hefore Caroline has noticed Christopher for his deposition, Therefore, even if this court |

' See Petition for Beconsideration, Page 2428

Tt
[
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deowrt’s order regarding its further clarification and/or assertion of jurisdiction.”

Ly o

does assert junsdiction over the Trust, clearly the fiffeen day period required by NROP 45§
would be violated unless and until proper jurisdiction, if any, was ordered by this Court.

Both Careline and Christopher are contesting the propet jurisdictional basis upon

oo

whicls this court asserted jorisdiction. It s olear that 2 subposna upon a parly over whon this
court doss not have personal furisdiction or as wgued, even in his role as an tnvestment trust
advisor {(which is currently on reconsideration and over which thers is an appeal), is in clewr
need of modification and in veed of a protective order
H Qo { S g . e e i ey s {S;_ ek I«\ e ‘b‘i At ey Careline e
In an effort w save attoraey fees and costs, Christopher reached out to Carclines

counsel to postpone the deposttion until a time fiftesn days after the

ot b

. b
) 1 b

~¥
’
¥

(j g :xs}ﬂUi‘?{ :..
2015, Carcline’s counsel notified Christopher’s counsel by telephone that they were denying
Christopher’s request,  On August 27, 2015, Chustopher's counsel again, m good fath,

*

TR ST S al I PR . - Ny g O3 L 2 TN R N e p oty e
reguesied that QroUne o Lt’hC, S UGS wler their ds ’61\5*01 i..xO’W‘fj\-' £1, Caroling’s counsel denigd
Christopher’s request.”  Therefors, Christopher was forced to file this motion for a protective

OTg t‘i

H, LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT

f"f

£

NRCP 26{c) indicates that a protective order may be sought i which justics requires o
protect a party of persor from annoyance, smbarrasament, oppression, or andue burden or
expense, inchuding ong or more of the following situations:

(1Y that the discovery not be had;

13 yu | . "‘1-“".\.:' "‘3 TN EYY O DIV h ".'
‘“"- that the discovery may be had only on specified terms and conditions, nsluding s
d{: signation of the time or place;

-l

* Qee Letter fram Andhony L. Barney dated August 28, 20153 4 >rd o Solemon, Dwiggns & Freer, Lid oo August

26, 2018, attached hereto and incorperated hereint as Exhibi A
¥ See Jetter dated August 27, 2015 frora Anthony L. Bamey .tsq faxed to Solomog, D
f‘iiww‘f 27, 2015, ¢ “tn’md 1ereto and inporporated herein as F\hsin* B.

“Seg k mail from Joshua Hood dated August 28, 2013, attached hereto and incorpurated hereln as Exiibit €

wigging & Freer, Lid on

LA
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(3) that the discovery may be had only by a method of discovery other than that selected
by the party seeking discovery;

(4) that certain matters not be inguired into, or that the scope of the discovery be limited
1o certain matters;

(5) that discovery be conducted with no ene present except persons designated by the
court;

(6) that a deposition after being sealed be opened only by order of the court;
(’7‘: that a trade secret or other confidential research, development, or commercial |
information not be revealed or be revealed only in a designated way;
\b) that the parties simultaneously file specified documents or information enclosed in|
sealed envelopes to be opened as directed by the court. |

NRCP 45(c) imposes responsibilities upon the parties or attorneys responsible for issuing and
serving subpoenas as follows:

{1} A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall take |
reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that |
subpoena. The court on behalf of which the mbpoena was issued shall enforce this duty
and impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction,
which may include, but is not limited to, lost e_amm_&.s and a reasonabie attorney’s fee.

Additionally, pursuant to NRCP 45(c)(3)(A), the witness upon whom the party is imposing the
undug burden or expense, may seek to quash or modify a subpoena if the party or aftorney:

(i) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance;

(11} requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to travel to a place more
than 100 miles from the place where that person resides, is employed or regularly
transacts business in person, except that such a person may in order to attend trial be

mmandea to travel ffom any such place within the state in which the trial is held, or

(i) requires disclosure of privile ged or other protected matter and no exceplion of |
waiver applies, or
(iv} subjects a person to undue burden.

Addressing the Federal counterparts to NRCP 26 and NRCP 45 the 9" circuit held that

“Rule 26(c) and Rule 45(c)(3) give ample discretion to district courts to quash or modify

subpoenas causing "undue burden.” The Federal Rules also afford nonparties special protection
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against the time and expense of complying with subpoenas,™ Additionally, nos-party status is 3
significant facior when determining whether a subpoena places an undae burden upon a party.’
In cvder to oblain i persosam jurisdiction over a non-residemt party the court must
comply with Nevada's long arm statute found in NRS 14,065 NRS 14.063 requires personal
service of @ sunminons i accordance with NRUP 4, and adherence to the requiremnents of federal

due process. Due process hmitations on the junsdiction of the cowrt serve two importaat

functions. "I protects the defendant against the burdens of litigating in a distant or inconvement
forum. And it acts to ensure that the States, through thelr courts, do not reach out bevond the

Hrits imposed on them by thelr stais 85 coequal sovereigns in o federal system.™ Due proc

-~ 3

requires ai @ minimem personal service of process and sufficient minimum contacts with the

3

. 3 gmes _ ‘ . R R, £ Fones g s + oA Xy 3Y1e1ee
forum state.” Finally, “a judgment rendered in vieolation of due process is void 1 the rendering

L ....,_j.\
Siate and is not entitled fo full faith and credit elsewhere.” :

Hersin, proper jurisdiction over the Trust has not been oblained as conceded by both

r h

Caroling and Cloistopher.””  Carcline concedes that the Court does not have jurisdiction as a

o

constructive trust in her Motion to Amend and she reguests the Court {ake i rem Jurisdichion.

Christopher disputes that the Court has jorisdiction as a constractive trust because the court bas

1

not taken in personam jnrisdiction over him to allow for a constructive trust remedy to be

~

g4, Caroline concedes tn her Obiection o the Petitton for Reconsiderstion

3

Py
lrwpeet

ReE:

,-_-J

i 13
ordered.”  Indeed

she “has not reguested this Coart to assume juris diction over Christopher, individually, or as

¢ oo k,:"?;"(” Y fh-‘" W ;‘H." 200 S Ledes e ‘{.T'J:';‘ C}" interis a8 4 F g ?-:4 ;’?Q {k;‘ﬁ‘f‘if Al 1a% Ka 1994 \.:‘
: Guy Chentipa! ~.’Z‘.:"-:.t W, r?omui;(: AG,TAFFRD A1, ..v.i § {"?\’.E?. Ind, 2000

Y Horld-Wide Volkowagen Corp. v Woodson, 444 U8 286, 292, (U8, 1280)

? Omni Copiiol fr:i Dy Rudolf Woiff & Co., 483 LS 97, 145, (LS 1087}

11 ! s CORNT o e e AR YT MDE AR PR ANy
1o ;U"p(»; J ;; } 3.’-’ é‘-:{"gu\(-{c’n}? k‘(i‘.’h{r W },;J.’,cf){"?‘::,{:)(?‘ -.;-1& ":\ 7‘:{(_{,0:‘ 2‘;} i . \\(“:‘;'_‘;_ j_f‘;},:s'\.?.}
to Arnend Bad Avgugr 10,2015,

Y goe Petition for Rt,cﬂ&:::trims t'?e< wly B4, 2015 and Motion K _
12

- ic Motion to Amend, Page 172324

7 Ree Patition for Hec )t*%;dnr“mr P'g 2428,
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ishe and her adorneys tave tailed to allow

Clark County, they arve forcing Christopher fo expend travel time, expenses

'f"*s
:.-«4
i
o
\.( )

L. = o p N Y R Y 3-“:' ‘"‘a".'_:' -~ o ‘. 3 -~ : . ™,
and expenses. fhis certamnly subjects

453N AN Christopher respectfully requests that the Court make each ot these fin

Imodify the subpoena which currently reguires him to appear for his deposition on Septeniber

Trustee of the Revoeable Trust”™™ Therefore, there is no constructive trust over which this
Cotrt has jurisdietion.

N

jre

Singe the May 19, 2015 Order does not invoke proper furisdiction, It is void; and th
conrt has no jurisdiction over Christopher in any Capacity 10 require him fo appear as a withess

m this proceeding, Therefore, & prodective order 18 reguived 1o protect Christopher from

cppression, undue burden and expunse,

,_-,..~

As a non-party, Chnstopher has, i good faith, requested that Caroline postpong the

depasttion until filteen days after the Court makes any order of hurisdiction in thys matter,” but

3 3

ﬁ.‘:‘;
'$

reasonable time for compliance pursnant to NRCP

R

i,-:a‘-'.\\-‘ SRV PP TS S & D S U ~3 v vt vy DY et e mrarm e Treany |
AN AN Additionally, knowing that Christopher Tives well over 100 nules away from |

i,

5, and expose him 1o

A,

lost earnings and extra attorney fees in traveling to Clark County, Nevada m violation of NRCP

A e e s ] N R 3 . . \f\ﬂ \ " - .-.'-\-“. -
43(ONAN.  Neither Caroline nor her counsel have made any concessions to travel 10

istopher and take his deposition where he 13 located or compensate him for s travel thme

Sim 1o an undee burden i violation of NRCP

Q_.
o
\-r
’D

\ v .»':"-

Caroline and ber atforney’s actions arg solely 16 annoy, embarrass, oppress, and causs
undue burden or gxpense to Plaintiffl Thevefors, an order of proteciton s warranted pursuant to

NRCP 26¢0) to prevent him from being required to appear for the September 3, 2015 depastion,

Christopher requests this Court grant ihis order of protection and requests this Court quash oy

A . e T3 e v ."' 3 i -
e Oblection to Petition for Reconsdeanon 1711517

o q
e S\..u E-‘(ju‘)!r :‘\ﬂn‘j .{:?E\

i1

(908
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2015, Unless and until there 13 an org f this Conrt with prope

~

fegal or lawhul requirement

“~

or Christophey

e,

fo appear 83 ¢ witpess given the

;’._'.'4

:
piace

Him.

upon him while this Court does not have proper hurisdiction nver

HLUCONCLUSION

Christopher respectiully requests the Court do the following:

t. Make th

LKLG”II‘E

(’)

¢ findings as requested

2. Orant this motion In ity entirety

DATED this 2g% day of Augnst, 20

u'\

Y

Respectiully Rnbmitted,
R{;L,wzs Law Firm

hroland@e \m«i aw . com
2y g’E Christopher D Davis

I\v B mo

331?&&' (tm m 5§ SSuie B
i.as Vepas, NV &91¢
Telephone: {702} 4. \‘é ?8?8
Facstmile: {71 -_

36 . A A TR T T s SRS S SO N B L ST S
> See attachment 1o Exfubet O where Caroline is foreing Christopher 1@

egas, Nevada

r
RS
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

i} hereby certify that | am an employes of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd,, and not a party to this action.
T further cevtfy that except as otherwise noted on August 28, 2018, { served the foregoing

v

CHRISTOPHER B, DAVIS® MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER _ARD YO

QUASH O MODBIEY THE SUBPOENA by fivst class UR mall, postage prepaid, upon the

o

following persons or entities:

Cheryl Davis
5403 West 134 Terrace, Unit 1323
Overland Park, KS 66209

A(l. ‘? })\\st\
3005 North ch erly Gien Clrcle
Las Anpeles, Cah fom a Qo077

14 West 260 Bixs *(:t_, #3E
Kansas Cily, Missour: 64108

Windield B, Davis

Skyiine Terrace Apts.

930 F mzno“ Terr. Apt. 329

Los Angeles, California 90012
ce Davis

cf Winfield B. Davis

Skviine Terrace Apts,

*'-fi?"?:i'm vog Terr. Apt. S29
os Angeles, Cahfornia 90G12-3072

Christopher D Davig

3005 North Boverly Glen Circle
Los Angeiles, California 90077
.é

»
Ba W an S n--.., . . r
6% Sireer, $3E
CEAN B,
-

§l {){4\1 ('\
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Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.

Resgistered Agent for FHT Holdings, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company

4625 West Mevso Drive, Sujte 2
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ.
CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GROUP
5@ Stephanie Street, Suite 101
Henderson, Nevada 89012
Jonathan@clearcounsel.com
Attorneys for Stephen K. Lenhard

Mark Solomon, Esq.

Joshua Hood, Esqg,

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 W. Chevenne Ave.

Attorney for Petitioner Caroline Davis

DUNHAM TRUST

SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA
Charlene Renwick, Esq.

Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garefalo
7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

i

+of Anthony L. Barney, Lid.
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Anthony L. Barney, M.S., J.B., TLL.M ,AN THONY Le B%R\}LY : LTD. Neva Liebe

Attorney at Law Administrative Assistant

Licensed in Nevada and ldaho A Nevada Professional Law
Tiffany S. Barney, J.B. Corporation W\Vz:aiﬁﬁéi)%igi:;chrn
Attorney at Law |
Ligensed in Nevada 3317 W. Charleston Boulevard, Suite B _ E-mail Address
Mary L Martell, 1., Las Vegas, Nevada 89102-1835 oificc@anthonybarmey.com
Law Clerk Receptionist: 702-438-7878

Fax: 702-259-1116

FACSIMILE TRANSMITTAL SHEET

To: Josuua M. Hoop, Esq. DATE: AUGUST 26,2015
FroM; NEVA LIEBE FAX NUMBER: 702-853-5485

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

TOTAL NUMBER NO. OF SENT Via FAX ONLY, EXCEPT AS CHECKED BELOW:
PAGES MalL: 73-COPY; X-ORIGINAL
(INCLUDING COVER): RUNNER: 53-COPY; 5-ORIGINAL

3 FEDEX: o=-COPY; 0-ORIGINAL

E-MAIL: —-COPY; o-ORIGINAL

SENDER’S FAX NUMBER:  SENDER'S PHONE NUMBER: SENDER’S E-MATL:
702-259-1116 702-438-7878 office{@anthonybarney.com

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS COMMUNICATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND MAY BE COVERED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT
PRIVILEGE AND/OR OTHER APPLICABLE PRIVILEGES. THIS IS INTENDED FOR THE DESIGNATED RECIPIENT ONLY, AND ANY .
DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION TO ANYONE ELSE IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE

RECEIVED THIS IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY TELEPHONE OR BY FAX AND DESTROY EVERY PAGE OF THIS
TRANSMISSION, THANK ¥YOU

ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS: Letter from Anthony L. Barney dated August 26,
2015
NOTES/COMMENTS:
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“Anthony L. Barney, M.S.. 1D, LLM. ey T A NIV - Lachary D, Holyeak
Aoyl L ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD. P

Licensed in Nevada and Idaho A Nevada Professional Law Neva Liehe
Tiffany S, Barpev, J.D. Corporation Administrative Assistant
- Attorney df Law

et N 1 o o . . . ‘Website Address
Licensed in Nevada 3317 W, Charleston Boulevard, Suite B www.anthonybamey com

Mary L. Mastell. 4.5 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102-1835

Fax: 702-259-1116 b xne

August 26, 2015

Joshma M. Hood, Esg.
Solomon Dwiggins Freer, Ltd.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Re: The Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust (“Trust™);
Case No. P-15-083867-T
Our Client: Christopher D. Davis

SENT VIA FACSIMILE AND US MAIL
Dear Mr. Hood,

My office is in receipt of Caroline’s notice of deposition of Christopher D. Davis
in the above-entitled matter. First, we are requesting that you postpone the deposition
until fifteen days after the order is entered on the petition for reconsideration. As yOou are
well aware, we are disputing that the Eighth Judicial District Court has jurisdiction over
the Trust and; likewise, Christopher D. Davis as alleged Trust Investment Adviser. We
will be forced to file a motion for a protective order alerting the court of this fact,
considering your deposition is scheduled the day after the Petition for Reconsideration is
to be heard. In order to save all parties time and money, we are requesting that you agree
to the postponement. Please let us know by tomerrow by 3:00 p.m. if you will agree to
postpone the deposition as requested; otherwise we will file the motion on an order
shortening time.

Second, please be on notice that Christopher D. Davis (*“Mr. Davis™) is located
over one hundred miles outside of Clark County, Nevada. Therefore, we will request the
court quash or modify the subpoena, to require you to fake the deposition where Mr.
Davis resides or otherwise pay for his travel expenses to travel to Clark County, Nevada.
Given the current facts and lack of jurisdiction over the Trust or him, Mr. Davis is not
required to travel to Clark County, Nevada for a deposition.
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Letter to Joshua M. 'H_x}od, Esq.
August 26, 2015
Page 2 0f 2

Time is of the essence. Please feel free to contact my office with any comments,
questions or concerns, as I look forward to resolving these issues with you. I can be

reached at the numbers above or the email address below.

Sincerely,

ANTHONY L. BARNEY
Attorney at Law
anthony(@anthonybarney.com

cc: Via U.S. Mail:
Client
Harriet Roland, Esq,
Charlene Renwick, Esg.
Jonathan Barlow, Esq.
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Anthony L. Baraev, MUS, LD, LL.M. AP s ey o Fachary D, Helveak
pr—rry ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LD, B
Licensed wn Nevada and ldaho A Nevada Professional Law o
- . Xeva Liche
Titfany 8. Barpev, 4D, {orporation Administrative Assisiam

At ._meym_;,,mx o :
Website Address

Licrased in Nevaid Sy gy ey \_',' T - - oy ot T :
Acensed in Nevada 1317 W, Chariesten Boulevarg, Suite B Wi anthonvhamey.com
Mary L. Macteh, LD, Las V egas, Nevada 80 12-1835 o
have e Receptionist: 702-438-7874 E-mail Address

oificc@lanthonvbamey com

Fax: 702-256-1116

Angust 27, 2015
Joshua M. Hood, Esq. SENT VIA FACSIMILE AND US MAIL
Solomon Dwiggins Freer, Lid.
S060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Re: The Beatrice B, Davis Family Heritage Trust (“Trust™;
Case Ne. P-15-083867-T
Our Client: C im stopher D, Davis

Pear Mr, Hood,

This afterncon, we received telephonic confirmation from you that you were
denying our good faith request to postpone the dag\oqwon of our client, C Emstb{ her I,
Davis, until ﬁf*een days alter the entry of this Court’s arder asserting praper jurisdiction
over the fm%t You indicated that you would be providing fax confirmation of the same.
As of 4:30 p.m., we have not recelved this fax Louf rmation.

Therefore, 'ir-* one last atfempt to reselve this matter out of court and before we
reguest our attorney fees yumﬂam to NRCH ;57( (4, we are renewing our reguest for
you 1o posipene € h ristopher’s depaosition until fifteen days after the eutry of this Court’s
order outlining proper assertion of jurisdiction over the Trust. Please let us know 16:00
A0 mmﬂrmw morning, if you will agree to postpone the deposition as requested;

otherwise we will file the attached motion and request an order shortening time to hear
this motion.

Time 15 of the ess anm Please feel free to contact my office with any comments,
questions or concerns, as [ look forward to resolving these issues with you. [ can be
reached at the numbers abwe or the email address below.

Sincersly,

A “\I}'E?UNY L BARNEY
Attorney at Law
anthony(@anthonybarney.com
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Letier to Joshua M. Hood, ¥sq,
August 27,2018
Pagel2of 2

e

Attachment: Christopher D. Davis® Motion for a Protective Order, to Quash or Modify
the Subpoena, and for Attormey Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 37(a)(4)

con Via ULS, Mail:
Client
Harriet Roland, Esq.
Charlene Renwick, Esq.
Jonathan Barlow, Esa.
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HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ.
NV Bar No, 53471

RopanD Law FirM

2470 EO51 Rose Phwy, Ste. 10§
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702} 452-1500
Facsimtle: (7023 920-8903

hredandi@rolandlawtirmucom

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, BSO.

Mevada Bar Mo. 8366

TIFFANY S BARNEY, ESQ.

MNevada Bar No. 8734

ANTEONY L, BARNEY, LTh.

3317 W, Charleston Blvd,, Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: {702} 259-1116
office@anthonybaroey.com
Attorneys for Chrisiopher 1. Davis

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the matier of .
{Case Noo P-15-083R67~1

The BEATRICE B. DAVIS PAMILY HERITAGH Dept. No. 26

TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on
February 24, 2014,

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS' MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER, TG QUASH OR
MODIFY THE SUBPOENA, AND FOR ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS PURSUANT
O NROP 37(aid)

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS (“Christopher™), by and through his attomeys HARRIET H.
ROLAND, Esq., of the ROLAND LAW FIRM and ANTHONY L. BARNEY, Esq., of the jaw

.

office of ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD., and hereby files his motion for & protective order, for
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the court to guash or modify the subpoena, and for the court fo award attorney fees and costs
|pursuant to NRCP 37(a)(4). This pleading is based on the Memorandum of Points aund

Authorities attached hereto, any exhibits attached hereto, and any oral argument that will be

DATED this 27" day of August, 2015.

Respectiully Submitted,
ROLAND LAWFKIRM

Harriet H. Roland, Esq,
Atrorney for Christopher 1. Davis

Respectinlly Submitted,
ANTHONY L, BARNEY, LTD,

Anthony L. Bamey, Esg.
Artorney for Christopher D Davis

{remainder of  page  imtemtionally  lefi  blank]

2
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I, FACTS PRESENTED

As this cowrt ts aware, Christopher DL Davis has sought reconsideration of this Cowrt’s
order because jurisdiction was improperly taken by this Conrt over the Beatrice B, Davis Family
Herlisge Trust dated July 28, 2000 (hereinafter “Trust™) based on an improper change of sius

and that there are indispensable parties that have not been joined by Caroline, and if they cannot

be joined, then the proceeding roust be dismissed. He filed his Petition for Reconsidergtion of

the Order Dated May 19, 20153 re: Petition fo Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B, Davis

Family Hentage Trust Dated July OO0, as Amended on February 24, 2014, 1o Assume
Jurisdiction over Christopher I3 Davis as Tnvestment Trust Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt ag
Distribution Trust Advisor, to Confiem Dunbam Trust Company as Directed Trustes, and for
immediate Disclosure of Docaments and Information from Christopher D Davis (“Pefition for
Reconsideration”™) on July 14, 20135, All facts presented in bis Petfition for Reconsideration gre
ncorporated hereln as if set forth fully hereln.  Caroline Davis ("Caroline”} then noticed

Christopher D, Davis (“Christopher™) was noticed for a deposition 1o be taken on September 3,

2015 at 100 am. in his alleged role as Invesiment Trust Advisor and Manager of FHY

Holdings, LLC.

Just as Christopher is disputing the alleged jurisdiction of the Conrt taken under the May
19, 2015 Order, Caroline herself is contesting the jurisdiction of the Court by the filing of her
Motion to Amend or Modify Order Pursnant to NRCP 60(b)(3) ("Motion to Amend™). Bhe

3 i 5 R R - ~ !-"\"'X ; [ PPy JIgH oy ey 2T + i
recognizes that taking jurisdiction over the Trust as a copstructive irast is clearly exvongous,” A

' Ree Petition for Reconsideration, Page 24-238.
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a constructive trust is g romedy for eguitable reliel and the court must first take in persopam

jurisdiction to award a constructive frust”  With Careline’s recognition of the incorrect

{jurisdiction taken by this Court in its May 19, 2015 Order, the Court clearly does not have

vroper jurisdiction over the Trusi, alleged Trnst Protector, alleged Trust Iovestment Advisor.
Without proper jurisdiction and in personam jorisdiction over his person, Christopher s olearly
not required o ohey a subpoens or submit o the deposition scheduled for September 3, 2015,

Furthermore, hoth the Petition for Recomsideration and Motion to Amend will be heard

ane day before Carcline has noticed Christopher for his deposition. Therefore, even if this court

does assert assert jurisdiction over the Trust, clearly the fifteen day period required by NRCP 45
would be viclated uidess and untll proper jurisdiction, i any, was ordered by this Court.

Becguse both sides are contesiing proper furisdiction before this Court, then it is clear

that a subpoena upon a party over whom this court does not have personal jurisdiction or
possibly jurisdiction even in his role as an investment frust advisor, which is cumently on
reconsideration and over which there is an appeal, 8 in olear need of modification and in need
of a protective order,

o an effort to save atlotney fees and costs, Christopher reached out to Caroline’
counsel to posipone the deposition until a time fifieen days afler the notice of the entry of the
cowrt’s order regarding jurisdiction®  On August 27, 2015, Cavoline’s counsel notified
Christopher’s counsel by telephone that they were denving Christopher’s request. On August

27, 20158, Christopher’s counsel again, in good faith, requested that Caroline counsel’s

2,

* Ree }_.-f.-:'ttsr from Anthony L. Barney dafed August 26, 2018 faxed to Selowon, Dewviggins & Freer, Lud on August
26, 2013, atta ht,d wreto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A

4
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reconsider thelr decision; however, Caroline’s counsel denied Christopher’s reguest”

‘\“l

Therefore, Christopher was forced 1o file thus motion for a protective order.

L LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENRT

A, A protective order and guashing or modification of the subpoena are warranted
pursuant to NRCP 26 and NCRP 45,
NRCP 26(¢) indicates that a protective order may be sought In winch justive requires to
protect a party or person from annoyance, embarrassment, oppression, or undue burden ot
expense, including one or more of the following situations:

{1) that the discovery not be had;
{ ") that the discovery may be had only on specified terms and conditions, including a
lesignation of the time or piace,

(3} that the discovery may be had only by a methed of discovery other than that selected
ry the party seeking discovery;
(4) that certain matters not be inguired into, or that the scope of the discovery be limited
1O ceviain matters;
(5} that discovery be comiucted with no one present except persons desigoated by the
court;
(&} that a deposition after being sealed be opened only by order of the court;
(7) that a frade secret or other confidential res&i_cn-dl_, development, or conmercial
information not be revealed or be revealed only 1 a designated way;
(8) that the parties sinultancously file specified documents or infurmation enclosed i
sealed envelopes to be opened as directed by the court,

NRCP 43(¢) hposes responsibilities upon the pariies or attorneys responsible for issuing and

serving subpoenas as follows:

(1) A party or an attorney rf:«n';m‘rc*lﬁie for the issuance and servige of a subpoena shall take
regsonable steps to aveld imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that
subpoena, The court on bebaif of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty |
and mpose upon the patty or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sg mction,
which may include, but is not Himited to, lost earnings and a reasonable atforney”s fee.

¢ Sen lntter d ,..tcd August

27, 2015 from Anthony L. Barsey, B faxed o Rolonwn, Dw:sg ns & Freer, Ld o
Aungast 27, 2015, attached herets

and incorporated herein as Exhibit B,
5

~
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Additionally, pursuant to NRCP 45(ey(3¥A), the witness upon whom the party s imposing the
undue burden or expense, niay seek o quash or modify a subpoena i the party or aftorney:

{1} fails to allow regsonable time {or “c’z'n-piiame'

(11} requires g person who is not a party or an of fficer of a party to travel toa place more
than 100 miles from the place where that person resides, is empia}ui or regularly
fransacts business in person, t:h&pi that such 3 persan may in order o attend irial be
commanded to travel from any such place within the state in which the trial is held, or
(i) requires disclosure of privileged or other protecied matter and no exceplion or
waiver applies, o1

{(iv} subjects a person to undue burden,

Herein, Plaintiff proper urisdiction over the Truat is being disputed by both Caroline
and Christopher. Caroline concedes that the Court does not bave does not have jursdiction as a

constructive trust in her Motion to Amensd and she requests the Court take f# rem jurisdiction.”

Christapher disputes that the Court has jurisdiction as a constructive trust because the court has

not faken in personam jurisdiction over him to allow for a consiructive trust remedy to be

orderedt Indeed, Caroling concedes in her Objection to the Petition for Reconsideration that

| she “has not requested this Court to assume jarisdiction over Christopher, individually, or as

Trustee of the Revocabie Trust)”

Therefore, this conrt has no jurisdiction over Christopher in any capactly o require him
t0 appear as a witness in this proceeding. Therefore, a protective order is required to protect
Christopher from oppression, undue burden and expense.

As a non-party, Christopher has, in good faith, requested that Caroline postpone the

deposition until fifteen days after the Court makes any order of jurisdiction in this matter,® but

she and her attorneys have failed to allow a reasonable time for complisnce pursuant to NRCP

S See Motion te Amend, Page 17:23-24,

¢ See Petiticn for Reconside mmr Pages 2428,

7 See Ubiection to Petition for Reconsideration 17:15-17,
# Spe Pxhibit A and B.

o
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45{X3HAX1).  Additionally, knowing that Christopher lives well over 100 miles away from
Clark County, they are forcing Christopher to expend travel time, expenses, and expose hun 1o
lost earnings and extra atiomey fees in fraveling to Clark County, Nevada in violgtion of NRCP

450N AN, Neither Caroline nor her counsel have rade any concessions 1o travel to
Christopher and fake his deposition where he is located or compensate him for this travel time

and cxpenses.  This certainly subjects him to an undue burden in violation of NRLP

1 45(e)3)NAX VY. Christopher respectiully requests that the Cowrt make each of these findings

Caroline and her attorney’s actions are solely to annoy, embarrass, oppress, and cause
undue burden or expense to Plaintiff, Therefore, an order of protection is warranted pursuant o
NRCE 26(c) and the court should quash or modify the subposna requiring Chuistopher’s
presence for his deposition on September 3, 2015, Unless and until there is an order of this
Court with proper jurisdiction, then there 15 no legal or laswfud requirement for Christopher 10
appear as a witness given the undue burden.

B, WRCP Rule 37(4)(a) provides for the award of atiorney fees after g good faith etlort
has been made, thus Christopher s eniitled o his attorney fees after his good faith
effort.

NRCP 26(c) indicates that NRCP 37(4)(a) applies io the award of expenses incurred in

relation to a motion for a protective order.  NRCP 37(4)(a) provisdes the following:

I the motion is granted or if the disclosure or requested discovery is provided after the
motion was fled, the court shall, after affording an opportunity to be heard, require the
party of irj;}a)%ﬂ whose conduct necessitated the wotlon or the party or atomney
advising such conduct or both of them to pay fo the n'zf)vmgc party the reasonable
expenses irncurred in making the motion, including attorney’s fees, paless the court finds
that the motion was filed without the movant’s first making a good faith effort to obtain
the disclosure or discovery without court action, or that the opposing party’s

nondisclosure, response or objection was substantially justihed, or that other
clrcumstances make an award of expenses unjust,
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Hereln, Christopher attempted 1o resoive this matter with Defendants outside of cout by
agreeing to postpone the deposition to time fifteen days after the eniry of the order of this Count
raking proper forisdiction over the Trust” On August 27, 20135, Caroline’s connsel called and

»

counsel that he was denying this request without explanation.

Therefore, the protection order and motion to quash and/or modify the subpoena are necessary.

l\-\

if Plaintiff®s motion is granted, Plaintiff requesis attorney fees and costs in the amount of

1$2.000.00 for the necessity of filing this motion. To be clear, Christopher iz not submitting to

the hurisdiction of the court for this aweard of attorney fees and costs, but is requesting such an

{award as a non-party for being forced to file this motion after having made good faith efforts

N vy A

pursuant to NRCP 37 AX4) to resolve this matter outside of court,

HLCONCLUSION

Christopher respectiully requests the Court do the following:

1. Make the reguisite findings as requested herein;
2. Grant this motion in ils entirety; and
:";".fi:;f

? See Extubit A andd B,
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3. Award aftorney fees and costs in the amount of $2,008.00 from Caroline andfor

Caroline’s counsel.
DATED this 27 day of August, 2015

Lespecttully Submitted,
RoLaxh Law Fiam

Harriet H. Roland, Esq.

NV Bar No. 5471

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV RO074
Telephone; (702) 452-1500

Facsimile: (702) 920-8843
h';:o'iand@ro}_amziat-v_ifimzvcam

Attorney for Christopher D Davis

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD,

Anthony L. Barney, Esq.

Mevada Bar No. 8366

’§il 17 W, Charleston Blvd,, Suile B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Teiegw‘nm’sé: {702} 438787
Faestrmle: ( UTI 50.111G
office/@anthonybarney.com

Y

Atiorney for Christopher D, Davis
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

{ further certify that except as otherwise noted on Angnst 27, 2015, I served the foregoing

CHRISTOQPHER B. DAVIS MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER, TO QUASH OR

MODIFY THE SUBPOENA AND FOR ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS PURSUANT

TO MROP 37(a)4)

by first class US mail, postage prepaid, upon the following persons or entities:

WO =3 Oy W d R s

ol
<2

Cheryl Davis
53403 West 134 Tervace, Umb 1525
Creerland Park, K5 66209

Ba pa g
W o

Tarja Davis

3003 North Beverly Glen Circle

Las Angeles, Californig 90477
And

S14 West 26Y Street, ¥3E

Kansas iy, Missouri 84108

N T
SE I T ¢ T

Winfield B, Davis

Skyiine Terrace Apts.

93{ Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90G12-3072

BSop
9w

Ace Davia

ofs Winfield B. Davis

Skyiine Terrace Apis,

930 Figuerog Terr, Apt. 529

Las Angeles, California 80412-3072

Christopher D, Davis

3005 Neorth Beverly Glen Cirele

Los Angeles, California 90077
And

| $14 West 26" Street, #3B

&? Kanaas City, Missouri 64108

28

By R
() 1821
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Registered Agent Solutions, {nc.

}\evnxie;ed Agent for FHT H oldms\» LIC, a Nevada Limited Lighility Company

4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

JONATHAN W, BARLOW, ESQ.
CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GROUP
54 Stepharde Street, Suite 101

¥ }tjﬂht,r"':\\ﬂ 1.'\: Y aJ..zd g(‘ﬂ 12
Jonathanimciearcounsel com
Attorneys for Stephen XK. Lenhardt

Mark Solomon, Fsq.

Joshua Hood, Beg,

SOLOMON BWIGGING & FREER, LTD.
Q060 W, Cheyenne Ave.

Lag Vegas, NV 89129

Attorney x‘?;s,* Petirioner Corolineg Davis

DUNHAM TRUST

SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA
Charlene Renwick, Esqg.

Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Carofalo
7575 Vegas Drive, #1350

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

il

}‘an‘k)jﬁﬁ of *hiﬂs(\ﬁ‘a L. Bd,tt*m Lid.
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TRIS I8 INTENDED FOR THE DESIGNATED RECIFIENT ONLY, ANS 4NY

DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPY OF CHIS COMMUNICATION TO ANVONE BLSE 1§ $TRICTLY PROHIBITED, IF YOU HAVE
RECEIVED THIS (N ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY TELEPHONE DR BY FAX AND DESTROY EYERY PAGE OF THIS

TRANSMISSION, THANK YOU.
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From: Joshua M. Hood <jhood@sdinviaw.com>

Sent: Friday, August 28, 2015 9:28 AN

To: 'Harriet Roland® (harrietroland@gmail.com); Anthony L, Barney
(anthony@anthonybamey. co"n}, office@anthonybarney.com

e Mark Solomon; Renee Guastaferro

Subject: Christopher D. Davis Depo \-_,.;t_iDﬂ'

Attachments: 2018-08-27 Iir to A Barney w fax confirmation.pdf

Ms. Roland and Mr. Barney:

| received a fax from Mr, Barney this morning regarding our declination to postpone the deposition of Christopher
Davis. Although a lgtter formally declining the request was faxed to the correct fax number, as indicated on M.
Barney’s ietterhead, and the fax confirmation sheet indicates it was received by Mr. Barney's office at 2:07 p.m. {see

attached SDF fax confirmation sheet and letter], Mr. Barney claims that the fax' was not Pecp'ived; Inan effort to avoid
any issues, | am sending this emaii, as weil as the letter that was to Mr. Barney's office, to both of you, as Christopher’s
counsel,

Please be advised that the request 1o postpone Christopher Davis’ deposition is denied.

Sincerely,
Joshiua M. Hood

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER. LTD.

Cheyenne West Professional Center | 9060 W, Cheyerne Avenue | Las Vegas, NV 89129
Direct: 702.58%2.3504 | Office: 702.85 53.5483

Facsimile: 702.853 54‘8\3

Ernail’ ihood@sdfnviow.com | Website: www.salnviaw.com

S5 www, *occoo\)k cmrn nvl W

&-freertd-

This message contains confidential information and may also contain information subject to the oftormey client
privilege or the attormey work product rutes. if you are not ine infended recipient, plecse delete the message
and contact Selomon Dwiggins & Freer, Lid. at 702-853-5483 Any‘disc‘osure copying. distribution. reliance on
or use of the contents of this message :>y nyorie other than the intended recioient is orohibited.
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SO CGMNGN A

TRUST AND

S

Chevenne W f,\t Profassional Cenwé
o660 \\?egi Cheysnge Avenue
Loy Vegas, Mavads 9129

etk AL :1,_‘5-:3 i'iam_(m

Tiana A. Dwiggins
Adan T Freer

'ﬂ*un K. dman.

5 1even E‘ Init{ngworth
Brian [*, Bagan

.lmtr y Polaseeck
Alsxander G Le'Veqgue

Telephone: 782 853 5483
Facermiler THZ 53,5488

Aungost 27, 2015

Via facsimile to: 762-2539-1116
Anthony L. Barey, Esq,

Anthony L. Barney, Lid.

3317 W, Charleston Blvd,, Stite B
Las \/ egas, Nevada 89102

Re:  The Beatvice B. Davis Family Heritage Trast

Dear Mr. Bamey:

{ am in receipt of vour con
the deposition of Christopher D, Ja"ls
“postponed wntil fiftesn days aftes
E-’-iease accept this letler as g derual 01 -%uch r%ue\t

Rass B, Evans
fordanng L. Bvaps
Joshus M, Hood
¢Cheispopher ). Fowler

*licensed onfy in Florida

Direct Dind (782) $82-380%

Emyil jhvod@edinviaw.cow

espondence, dated August 26, 2015, wherein you requested
~‘-u-uer1t1y ¢m\,u|zl -d for SV _fpmbpr 3

{ { S be—z

x(if.li.LlJnun.;, b ;-;nﬁ-as.a bc ad wa@d ahz:zt -th:;

ieposition date, time and location (September 3, 20135, 16:00 a.m. at the Law offices of Sclomon

i_}-.&'i.ggm & Freer, Lid.) has been confirmed and a cr-urt.r'eportfr

a M Hc el

1\.-

,_CE

Ces Chient.

EMAL SDESWEIHFNVILAW.COM | WER SDFNVLA

WoCOM

will be present,
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Electronically Filed

09/18/2015 01:33:13 PM
TRAN WI& ikg‘“"‘"""’
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* Kk Kk Kk %k

IN THE MATTER OF THE TRUST OF': CASE NO. P-15-083867

THE BEATRICE DAVIS HERITAGE
TRUST.

DEPT. NO. XXVI

N Tt v e e’

Transcript of Proceedings

BEFORE THE HONORABLE GLORIA J. STURMAN, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

ALL PENDING MOTIONS

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2015

APPEARANCES :
For Caroline Davis: MARK ALAN SOLOMON, ESQ.
JOSHUA M. HOOD, ESQ.
For Christopher Davis: ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.

HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ.
For Dunham Trust Company: CHARLENE N. RENWICK, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: KERRY ESPARZA, DISTRICT COURT
TRANSCRIBED BY: KRISTEN LUNKWITZ

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcriptilion service.
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WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 AT 10:25 A.M.

THE COURT: P083867.

MR. BARNEY: Good morning, Your Honor. Anthony
Barney on behalf of Christopher Davis.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. RENWICK: Good morning, Your Honor. Charlene
Renwick on behalf of the Dunham Trust Company.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. ROLAND: Good morning, Your Honor. Harriet
Roland on behalf of Christopher Davis.

MR. SOLOMON: Mark Solomon and Joshua Hood on
behalf of Caroline Davis.

THE COURT: Okay. We’ve got several different
motions. So I guess we need to discuss what’s the best
order 1n which to take them.

There’s a Motion to Quash, which I think evervybody
agreed 1s best heard after the fact because we need to know
what’s going to happen otherwise going forward. So
probably the order makes sense would be me to do the
Petition for Reconsideration and then the Motion to Amend
or Modify, to the extent that there’s really any
difference. They’re really kind of overlapping and they’re
kind of the same thing, I think, but that probably is the

order that makes the most sense, Mr. Barney.
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MR. BARNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor. It’s always
good to be here.

THE COURT: I'm sure.

MR. BARNEY: Well, I actually enjoy arguing
before you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: First I want to jJust take you back to
the Motion to Dismiss, because that’s the Petition for
Reconsideration upon which we’re here today and I’'11 direct
you essentially back to pages 10 and 11 of that Petition
where I set forth the factors under NRCP 12 (b) which was
the lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, lack of
jurisdiction over the person, insufficiency of process, and
the insufficiency of service of process.

Now, 1n that petition, I said: The petitioner,
Caroline, 1s relying solely upon the wvalidity of a
purported amendment to an i1rrevocable trust which must
be properly determined under Alaska law. Only after
determination of the validity of the purported
amendment to an irrevocable trust by an Alaskan Court
could the Court properly rely upon the jurisdictional
arguments raised by Caroline, as the petitioner, as the

basis to assert Jjurisdiction over the trust.
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And if the 1°° amendment is invalid, then there’s
no basis upon which to assume the interim Jurisdiction over
the trust and without determining the validity of the
purported amendment, petitioner, Caroline, seeks to
bootstrap her request to the Court to take in rem
Jurisdiction by confirming Dunham Trust Company as the
trustee of the trust without addressing the condition
precedent, as you know, which is the wvalidity of the
amendment.

Okay. Or whether there was clear lack of service
of process necessary to take 1n personam jurisdiction over
Christopher Davis. Now 1t’s pretty clear. I set forth the
law in Nevada that 1f the Court doesn’t have proper
Jurisdiction, that essentially it’s authority 1s a nullity
in regards to the order and the -- I’'d first like to
address the condition precedent which did not occur and
therefore resulted in an invalid amendment to the FHT
Trust. And because the condition precedent wasn’t met,
this Court 1s essentially without jurisdiction to further
consider the matter. The change 1n trust 1s invalid 1f any
one of the following are met: Whether or not the -- and if
these are true, there 1sn’t a proper change in situs and
therefore a lack of the ability for this Court to take
Jurisdiction.

Number one 1s whether the Alaskan trustees 1f they
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were not provided with independent advice and an opinion of
legal counsel regarding the effects of the change in situs
which would be contrary to the terms of the FHT; number
two, whether the Alaskan trustee did not have the power to
evaluate and offer as a change 1n trust according to the
terms of the FHT; and, three, whether Taria [phonetic]
Davis 1s a discretionary beneficiary at the time of the
purported change in situs. Because all of these statements
are true, the trust situs remains 1n Alaska and the Court
1s without Jurisdiction.

We have no evidence to suggest that an Alaskan
trustee was provided with an independent advice and opinion
of counsel regarding the effects of the change in situs,
which 1s contrary to the terms of the trust. In fact, 1t
appears the mastermind behind all of the documents prepared
in this regard was Mr. Lehnardt, the trust protector. One
of the terms of the trust i1s essentially absolved with
liability.

Now, 1t’s interesting to note the absolution of
liability on Mr. Lehnardt’s part because when you look at
the trust and you understand that the protections buillt
into the terms of the trust were for the trust -- trustee
ltself to obtain independent advice. You realize that this
1s because of the fact that Mr. Lehnardt 1s essentially

absolved of liability and so, therefore, any major change,
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such as a change 1n situs, would be one 1in which the
trustee would have to obtain independent counsel on.

It’s for this reason that the Alaskan trustee was
tasked with getting their own legal opinion prior to
agreeing to the change in situs or the transfer. One would
expect that the Alaska trustee to have signed the 1°°
amendment 1ndicating that the opinion or the advice of
legal counsel had been obtained prior to the change in
situs, however if you look at the 1°° amendment, purportedly
Dunham Trust Company 1s listed as the trustee agreeing to
the situs change in the 1°% amendment, not the Alaska
trustee from whose jurisdiction the trust would be
transferred from.

The Nevada trustee, Dunham Trust Company, which 1is
allegedly put forth as the new trustee under the 1°°
amendment, does not indicate whether they reviewed an
opinion of counsel and I’ve spoken with counsel. They
didn’t review an opinion according to her that there was
such an opinion provided [sic]. Furthermore, 1t appears
that 1nstead they indicated that they relied solely upon
the trust protector that all the consent had been obtained.

So, Dunham Trust, 1f you look at their response,
they said that we relied, essentially, upon all of the ref
-— all of the recommendations, essentially, that were set

forth by Mr. Lehnardt, which, ironically, 1s not before
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this Court because accordingly his acts didn’t rise to the
level that would require Jjurisdictional [indiscernible] and
yvet the plan that he masterminded and had essentially
different beneficiaries sign, not all of which -- well, the
facts to my knowledge, none of which were represented by
counsel, supposedly, one of those individuals, Christopher
Davis, there 1s sufficient to take jurisdiction over him as
the trust advisor. There really 1s no evidence before this
Court that such an independent opinion of counsel was
really obtained and, in fact, enormous evidence presented
by Caroline under Alaska law to suggest that it did not.

This 1is one of the cases where, Your Honor, I’ve
ask that the Alaska trustees be considered an indispensible
party and yet Caroline 1s actually the one that makes the
points well for me. We are arguing Alaska law, whether or
not they retain sufficient jJurisdiction after their alleged
resignation, whether or not they had the ability to change
situs under their powers after the alleged resignation and
vet, at the same time, Caroline’s arguing that they’re not
a necessary party to this even though we’re arguing about
all of the issues that go into the condition precedent as
to whether or not this trust was properly changed and its
situs.

The Alaska trustees are necessary parties for

factual determinations of their potential liability
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regarding theilr records. They were the trustees for 13, 1T
believe 14 years, and yet all of the records that are being
requested which, admittedly by Carocline, are in their
possession. They just believe that there’s another copy
somewhere held by a beneficiary. Okay? Christopher Davis.

It does prove that the condition precedent was not
met though in order to transfer the jurisdiction of the FHT
to the situs of Nevada.

Now the next question 1s this: Did the Alaskan
trustees have the power to evaluate and authorize a change
in situs according to the terms of the FHT? Well, I guess
that depends on how one interprets Alaskan law and that’s
what we’re reduced to 1s trying to determine what an
Alaskan Court would say with regard to whether or not the
trustee in Alaska retained the powers to change in situs
because we know not all of the powers have been changed,
according to their statute.

Caroline argues that the Alaska trustee retained
the duties to transfer the situs and therefore they did;
however, I ask the Court: What evidence i1s there to
suggest that such a transfer was properly incurred? And
the trustee -- the Alaska trustee did not sign the 1°"
amendment and we don’t have any evidence to suggest that
anyone other than the trust protector may have seen an

opinion and, 1in fact, we even offered inferior evidence
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that -- we’ve offered e-mails and so forth.

Now, 1f an opinion existed, why not Jjust produce
the opinion? And 1f the opinion is produced, why was it
produced and not produced originally? And, 1f this opinion
1s produced, whose attorney was 1it? Was i1t Lehnardt’s
attorney? Because that’s not what the trust calls for.
He’ s absolved of liability. Was 1t an independent counsel
for the trustee? According to my discussions with Dunham,
they never saw 1t. They were just relying on Lehnardt.
According to the affidavit that was filed by the Alaskan
trustee, she doesn’t say she’s -- saw an opinion and she
had every ample opportunity to say: I saw the opinion and
here’s my declaration. And she’s silent.

The reality is 1t’s more like what was referred to
by Mr. Solomon in court. They made the situs change and
then they went out and got an opinion and those are his
words. Okay. I'm paraphrasing of course.

Now, 1t’s clear that if this was the case, and if
we were to believe Mr. Solomon’s recitation of the facts,
that the trustee didn’t obtain independent advice and
there’s a breach of the terms of the trust, Tarila
[phonetic] Davis 1s the next question. Is Taria [phonetic]
Davis a discretionary beneficiary at the time of the
purported change in the trust?

I set forth, Your Honor, at length, the reading of
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the trust. And, Your Honor, I've got to tell you, 1t’s 110
pages of very small print and I’'ve read 1t many, many
times. The reality 1s that i1n order to understand this
trust, vou’ve got to read the whole thing. I know that as
attorneys, oftentimes, you know, we want to cherry pick.
We want to pick one provision that looks good and that’s
essentially what Caroline has done. She’s cherry picked a
provision and actually not even cited the full provisions
of Article 8 to demonstrate that she is defined as a
surviving spouse living with the primary beneficiary.

Because all of the statements are true, the trust
situs remains 1n Alaska and this Court lacks Jjurisdiction.
It’"s clear that 1f you look at -- and I’'m more than happy,
Your Honor, to discuss the various matters regarding the
trust, but the most salient parts of the trust showing
forth that Taria [phonetic] i1s the beneficiary of the trust
are set forth in Article 8.

We don’t dispute that Article 14 sets forth the
qualifying period. I think that’s pretty clear. All of
the provisions from Article 3 all the way to the end refer
to that qualifying period. What 1s the salient point 1is:
Who are the primary beneficiaries? Now the primary
beneficlaries, 1t’s very clear, are set forth by Beatrice
herself. She says: It’s my kids. It’s my children’s

spouses. It’s my descendants and 1it’s any other person
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that qualifies under the terms of the trust.

There’s only one qualifying provision to become a
primary beneficiary of the trust and that’s on 14. And
even that provision, Your Honor, 1sn’t the 10-year
regquirement that they’re alleging. If you read the term
closely and you look at part A at 14 that’s referenced by
J.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARNEY: TIt’s very clear that 1if there’s an
involuntary separation, that 10 years isn’t really 10 years
and the reason we know 1s because the interest that’s held
by an after adopted or a potential child of the marital
union, his share i1s retained. His or her share 1s retailined
in trust. And the reality 1s when you look at that and you
understand that their share is retained no matter what, vyou
understand that there i1s a share arising right there under
the gqualifying period. We know it. We know 1t does
because i1it’s defined that the trustee must do 1t.

The trustee i1s given great discretion in this
trust. The purported trustee, we don’t believe Dunham
Trust 1s the correct trustee 1n this, but they’'re alleging
that Taria [phonetic] 1s a beneficiary. I do agree with
the argument, I just don’t agree that they’re the trustee
right now because of the fact that the 1°" amendment, it was

-— was not validly executed under the terms of the trust
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because the condition precedent was not met.

It’s further known, when we look at the trust
itself, that we have a situation where the issues with
regard to a share of the trust are important and 1f vyou
look at Article 8, which 1is probably the most salient point
that we’re looking at, Article 8 indicates that a spouse
that receives a share, which i1is limited, for health,
education, and maintenance, and support, 1s limited even in
that share unlike you would -- unlike it’s clear from
earlier provisions at Article 3 that a qualifying person’s
share 1s taken from the general trust, not from any
specific shares.

SO we know that a primary beneficiary’s share 1is
taken from the general trust. It’s not taken subject to
anybody else’s share and yet, 1in Article 8, that’s exactly
what’s called out. There’s a new definition of a spouse
that’s being qualified. That spouse is one that -- who 1is
living with the primary beneficiary and also who has a
narrow, limited, discretionary standard to health,
education, maintenance, and support. And i1t’s actually
even --

THE COURT: RBut is a spouse -—--

MR. BARNEY: -- more narrow than that.

THE COURT: -- even entitled to anything unless

they meet the qualifying period?
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MR. BARNEY: They absolutely are.
THE COURT: The qualifying period, to me, 1looks
like 1it’s pretty clear. It defines spouse:
An individual 1is a spouse. If such individual 1is
the then current spouse of a child --

MR. BARNEY: And who is that?

THE COURT: -- and --
MR. BARNEY: That would be Cheryl, his first
wife.
THE COURT: Correct. Following the signing and
date of this trust. If an i1ndividual enters into a

valid marital union as defined in Paragraph A of this
section with a child of mine or a beneficiary of mine,
following the sign and the date of the trust, then such
individual may --

MR. BARNEY: That’s the qualifying --

THE COURT: May.

MR. BARNEY: -- spouse. You're right.

THE COURT: May qualify as a spouse 1f the marital
union exists continuously for a period of 10 years and
1f the individual 1s not legally separated.

I mean, so I think we’ve got a valid polnt that

Taria [phonetic] -- that until Taria [phonetic] meetsthat
qualifying period she doesn’t have any rights.

MR. BARNEY: No. She’s -- what would Taria
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[phonetic] be qualifying for then, Your Honor, 1f 1it’s only
a share to be taken from a primary beneficiary’s share?
What would she be qualifying for?

THE COURT: Under D.

MR. BARNEY: No.

THE COURT: 8D

MR. BARNEY: No.

THE COURT: I don’t think she’s got any right to
anything until she qualifies.

MR. BARNEY: She wouldn’t -- but what would she be
qualifying for? A limited standard that’s set forth under
Article 8? That would be absurd because essentially what
we're saying then i1is Taria [phonetic], even after you
qualify, your share 1s subject to a discretionary standard
of health, education, maintenance, and support but only
after the share i1is allocated and the trustee looks at the
needs of the primary beneficiary.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARNEY: So what would she be qualifying for
because clearly what Beatrice i1s saying early on 1s that
the beneficiaries of this are her when she qualifies, but
until she qualifies, she has a limited discretionary
standard and that’s very clear.

THE COURT: Well, I guess the concern that I have

here i1s that your position, 1f I understand your position,
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1s 1t leaves this trust somewhat adrift because 1t 1s --
the i1ssues that were railised by Dunham were very valid
concerns. They were like: Well, what do we do? Because
1f what -- if the position that your clients are taking,
Mr. Barney, 1is that this was all done invalidly, then there
are all these people out there who have done work in good
faith acting, believing that they were acting for this
trust who got c¢laims, who have performed services, and this
trustee 1s a putative trustee. They’'re acting on the
assumption that they were properly appointed. They’'re --
all of a sudden, they have this fiduciary duty still even

though they’re not properly appointed, apparently,

according to you, and they’re like: But what are we going
to do? Who -- how do we administer this trust if you would
leave 1t an orphan? It would be —-- not be subject to the
Jurisdiction really of any state. It would not be subject
to the management of any trustee. It’s just out there
adrift and --

MR. BARNEY: It would be --

THE COURT: -- that’s my concern.

MR. BARNEY: Well, and I disagree with the

Court’s characterization because that’s not what I’'m asking
for. I'm asking --
THE COURT: Well what are you asking for?

MR. BARNEY: I’m asking that Alaska be brought in
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as an indispensible party. If not, 1t needs to be
dismissed. The Alaskan Court needs to determine and

appolint a trustee.

There -- this i1ssue of having the trust adrift, a
Court appeints all the time a trustee for a trust. There
really 1s no 1ssue with regard -- and 1f you want to talk

about adrift, it was actually the actions of Mr. Lehnardt
that left i1t adrift. We have resignations supposedly by
the Alaskan trustee only holding certalin requirements. We
already know 1it’s been adrift. We’'re not asking that 1t be
put into the adrift mode. It was already put in adrift by
the actions that occurred. And that therein lies the

liability for the Alaska trust.

THE COURT: So you’'re —-- you believe that this
trust, 1t needs to -- jJurisdiction is properly in Alaska, -

MR. BARNEY: Yes.

THE COURT: -- and that the Alaska Court needs to

deal with this, and what are they going to be doing? This
1s the concern is that all of this activity has gone on in
the last, I don't know, 18 months or however 1t’s been here
in Nevada and we’re -- what we’re going to hale people into
court 1in Alaska who have in good faith been dealing with
this trust here in Nevada thinking that they were -- that

1t had been properly transferred here to Nevada? I mean, I
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Just —-- what’s the jurisdiction of the Court over them
there? None.

MR. BARNEY: Well, here’s the thing. When we
don’t have jurisdiction and this case 1s a perfect example.
They’ve actually filed suit out 1n Missourili and do you know
why they filed suit in Missouri, Your Honor? Because when
they raise the issue that they’re trying to get
Jurisdiction over Christopher as -- 1in his capacity

belonging to the revocable trust and other capacities, they

realize: You know what? We can’t get that here so we're -
THE COURT: Oh no. They’'re -- that’s clear.
That’"s --
MR. BARNEY: -- golng to file sult in the --

THE COURT: That’s clear. I mean, I don't think
anybody’s disputing --

MR. BARNEY: They can file suit here.

THE COURT: That’s Missouri. That’s Missouri.
But, you know, he’s at least got contacts with those
states. I don’t see —--

MR. BARNEY: vyou’re right. It doesn’t --

THE COURT: -- any contacts that anybody has with
Alaska.

MR. BARNEY: Except that the trust i1is set forth

under the laws of Alaska and unless the condition precedent
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1s met, you can’t change those --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: -- to Nevada and the reality is —--
and let’s go back to the issue of Taria’s [phonetic]
beneficiary status. Back to part A.

Part A 1s very clear that 1f a spouse 1s married,
in this case to Christopher, and she’s living with him,
okay, and 1t’s redefined. We know that’ a term of art. If
1t just said spouse, 1t would have just said spouse. Okay?
It wouldn’t have a qualifying and living with him. And it
wouldn’t have the qualifier and, oh by the way, the
interest that you get is limited not as a primary
beneficiary, which Beatrice announced 1s going to apply to
her children, theilr spouses, and any other after qualified
person, but this standard i1s much different. This 1s one
that says while you’re qualifying, you get this limited
standard, but only after the needs of, in this case,
Christopher are met.

THE COURT: Okay. Well I guess —-- and here’s the
thing. This i1is a Motion for Reconsideration. So the only
thing I can look at 1s there something new or has there
been an error made previously? So the new 1s we now have
Taria’s [phonetic] affidavit, which we didn’t have before.
We’ve got 1t now. So, 1t’s helpful because 1t tells us

that she’s been married to this guy for two years. That’s
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an 1lmportant point.

MR. BARNEY: And that she didn’t consent to a
transfer of the situs to Nevada and doesn’t even believe
that 1t’s here.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. With all due
respect, 1t doesn’t matter what she believes.

So, the other question that I have then is the --
what’s new or not previously considered by the Court? You
make an argument that the Court can’t just take
Jurisdiction over some things but there 1s lots of case law
in Nevada that says it 1s appropriate to go forward with
discovery on jurisdictional issues. You can proceed with
discovery on Jjurisdictional issues where there’s this
argument about whether there 1s proper Jjurisdiction over
somebody for personal jurisdiction to bring somebody in
litigation. 1It’s in the context of --

MR. BARNEY: I"d be --

THE COURT: -- corporations, --
MR. BARNEY: -- to address that.
THE COURT: -- everything else.

MR. BARNEY; I’d be happy to address that.

THE COURT: So, really, 1t’s a question of -- as I
sald, somebody has to take jJurisdiction over this thing so
we can resolve this issue of where is Jjurisdiction? That’s

what I think we’re doing here.
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MR. BARNEY: One last thing.
THE COURT: So, okay. So it’s your position that

it’s Alaska. Okay. Fine. Thank you. Okay. We’re --

MR. BARNEY: SO, let’s talk about --
THE COURT: -- good.
MR. BARNEY: —-- jurisdiction then. The issue with

regard to whether or not this Court can take in rem
Jurisdiction.

So, aside from the fact -- and on page 30 of the

trust:

A distribution to or for the benefit of a
beneficiary shall be charged to the trust as a whole
rather than against the beneficiary’s ultimate share.

Which demonstrates again that the lesser

discretionary standard under Chapter 8 absolutely applies
to Taria [phonetic]. Let’s look about -- even if the
condition for precedent -- condition precedent for change
of situs was met, okay, let’s assume arguendo that 1t was.
The trust must then determine 1f the jurisdiction 1s proper
over the trust as proceeding in rem under 164010, which the
evidence just doesn’t support.

Because there was a lack of evidence, this Court

adopted Mr. Solomon’s theory that this Court could take
Jurisdiction as a constructive trust. That was the

argument raised by him. However, a court must first obtain
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Jurisdiction prior to constructing a trust under the legal
remedy of constructive trust. No sooner had this Court
adopted this theory than Caroline objected on her theory
and another theory, apparently, in her Motion to Amend.

Now, assuming for argument sake, that this Court
found a basis for in rem jurisdiction because according to
Caroline’s pleadings, they are not seeking 1in personam
Jurisdiction over Christopher. The Court granted discovery
rights to Caroline over Christopher in his purported role
as lnvestment trust advisor under 103.50555 [sic]. Okay?

However, 163.50b05 is a derivative jurisdiction
after trust has been brought under the Jjurisdiction of
Nevada under 164.010. And that’s highly contested,
obviously, 1n this matter, Your Honor. BRecause of 1its
derivative nature, 163.55555 [sic] can only be asserted
upon actions arising out of a decision made by the advisor.
There’s no evidence to suggest that the decisions were made
by the advisory —-- by this advisor.

And, 1in fact, 1f you look at the arguments,
they’ re asserting that about 1 percent of all the policy
loans, which, by the way, are secured by the trustee, okay,
those supposedly occurred here. I’ve spoken with Dunham
Trust. Christopher had no import in that. They received
those apparently for their fees. So he didn’t make any

decisions regarding that money that would arise in Nevada
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and that’s clearly something that needs to be looked at in,
you know, 1n the case of Dunham.

Now, 1t’s interesting because the mastermind of
this whole thing i1is Mr. Lehnardt who apparently —-- his name
1s all over the documents, supposedly he reached out to an
attorney that was his own attorney. He 1s, by nature, an
attorney himself and he devises that -- we have a
declaration from Christopher saying that this essentially
1s the case and yet, after all of those actions, he’s not
here because under 163.5505, apparently there’s nothing
that gives rise to those actions and yet there is for
Christopher whose name apparently he put on these documents
and who apparently didn’t have any contact with Dunham with
regard to the $2,500 [sic] in terms of distribution or
anything.

So, the gquestion remains with Christopher, what
acts could have arisen even 1n his role as i1nvestment trust
advisor that would operate to give the Court jurisdiction?
And what it really means is this Court’s jurisdiction under
163.5555 1s strictly limited to the rest which arises out
of a decision made by the trust advisor who clearly isn’t
present here.

Now, while i1t’s clear that the transaction on
behalf of the FHT were designed and orchestrated by Mr.

Lenhardt, he’s not here and Christopher supposedly 1s;
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however there was no evidence to suggest that Christopher
was subject to this Court’s derivative jurisdiction and a
clear lack of service to this Court to assume 1n personam
Jurisdiction. I mean, that was clearly absent. There 1is
no 1in personam Jjurisdiction here.

Now during the court hearing, this Court indicated
it was taking jJurisdiction in his role asgs investment trust
advisor. And I asked the Court repeatedly to be clear
because I want to know how to help the client understand
the Court’s order. I was very concerned about the
dismissal of Mr. Lehnardt and then this Court’s assertion
of Jurisdiction over Christopher because Caroline had
requested Jurisdiction over Christopher 1n various other
capacities, none of which were related to Nevada. This
Court was very clear during the hearing about the extent
that i1t would allow Caroline to seek documents; however,
during the pendency of the final order, Mark Solomon
submitted an ex parte letter to this Court seeking a more
expansive order than had been announced.

I immediately sent a letter to Mr. Solomon
concerning this ex parte -- or an e-mail to Mr. Solomon
concerning this letter and the nature of this communication
because the letter was replete with new case law that had
never been argued in the court.

Now, Your Honor, I understand. I have a law clerk
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that used to work for the courts. I understand that
oftentimes the jJudges make revisions to orders and they
delegate that to law clerks and other staff and then they
report back and I don’t think that this Court truly looked
at this in any type of aggressive or negative nature;
however, what’s clear i1is that Mr. Solomon’s letter was
submitted ex parte.

Now, he says 1t was a mea culpa. I -- he says —--
and I’'ve got to trust him at his word that -- but one of
the concerns that T had was I wrote a letter to the Court
because I understand under 2.9 of the Judicial Rules of
Conduct that I'd be given the ability to brief or answer,
at least have a responsive request to those, because I have
the right to respond and my letter went completely
unanswered.

And then what essentially was generated by the
Court was an 1interlineated order which even created more
vagueness because everyone read the order a little bit

W

different and you couldn’t tell 1if 1t was an “or” or an

“an”. I wasn’t sure 1f 1t was a comma or 1f 1t was
referring to the handwritten interlineation above 1t, if
those apply to both roles because clearly the second role
was one that was not stated during the oral arguments as

being a role that he would be required to comply with and

that was of the FHT Holdings. He’s an officer of the
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company. It’s the trust that owns it. He wasn’t served
with in personam Jjurisdiction for any of these requests
that were being made.

As I look at this, i1t’s clear from all of the
voluminous arguments about the Alaska trustee and whether
or not they had juris -- you know, the ability to change
situs and 1t’s clear from the order and also from the trust
1tself that something’s gone awry because we have a
situation now where not only have the conditions precedent
been ignored to try to change the trust situs, but we’re
trying to exclude somebody as a beneficiary. And 1n my
attempt to try to respond to the ex parte letter that was
submitted and -- and, really, I wanted to take away the
taint that appeared on this letter that was delivered to
the Court 1n hopes that I would be able to respond
appropriately. That’s all I was asking was to be able to
respond before a final order was entered and I wasn’t given
that opportunity.

And, Your Honor, I don't know to what degree this
was delegated and I’'m not even going to make assumptions
because you’ve always treated me with great respect 1in this
court and I’'ve never felt 1like you’ve ever done anything
untoward towards me with regard to, you know, my arguments
and my presentation 1n this court, however, 1t 1s clear

from the evidence that 1s here that there isn’t proper
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Jurisdiction over Christopher Davis in this matter. There
isn’t proper Jjurisdiction over the trust. They admit that
they never even sought in personam jurisdiction. There are
no acts that he could be alleged of committing that would
give rise to even a derivative jurisdiction under 163.5555.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: And, therefore, our Motion to Dismiss
should be granted.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: With respect to the position that
Dunham Trust 1s taking, as I said, I think some interesting
lssues were railsed. So, counsel, do you want to address
those briefly?

MS. RENWICK: Yes, thank you, Your Honor.

We set forth a very, very limited response and I’'d
Just like to reiterate: We take no position on the
Petition for Reconsideration.

Our concern here i1s that, you know, in the event
that the petition 1s granted with respect to the Court’s
order related to that, or even 1f the petition 1s denied,
we’'d like a reaffirmation from the Court’s prior ruling in
the earlier hearing that the Dunham Trust has been acting
in good faith as the directed trustee and based on its

reliance that the trust situs was changed pursuant to the
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terms of the trust, as represented by the trust protector,
Mr. Lehnardt.

A couple of clarifying points, Mr. Barney
mentioned a $25,000 distribution from the trust. The
$25,000, Your Honor, was not a fee paid to Dunham Trust.
That amount was actually used to pay Mr. Lehnardt’s fees
and his attorneys' fees. We've -- I believe my client has
already provided an accounting of that to Ms. Davis’
counsel. To the extent that that’s required again, we’re
certainly happy to produce 1t, but at no point did Dunham
Trust take a $25,000 fee for its services is my
understanding based on what the client has produced to me.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I stand corrected then on
that peoint. It was my understanding that those fees were
paid to Dunham Trust, but it sounds like it’s —-- those fees
have also been taken by Mr. Lehnardt, a party not a party
to this action.

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks.

MS. RENWICK: And, again, coming back to those
fees, one of the polints we raised 1n our position is: What
1s Dunham Trust’s role then? That’s what we’re tryving to
get some clarification --

THE COURT: Exactly.

MS. RENWICK: -— on. We’d like a comfort order at
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this stage, given the dispute as to whether or not Dunham
Trust can continue acting as the directed trustee and
perform 1ts duties, which includes paying the
administrative expenses of the trust, including the fees
that have been submitted by the trust protector for his own
fees as well as his attorneys' fees, which do involve this
dispute. That also involves Dunham Trust having to retailn
counsel and obviously i1ts attorneys' fees. So that’s one
of our underlying concerns 1s: Well, where do we go from
here? And --

THE COURT: Right.

MS. RENWICK: -- what 1s our role?

THE COURT: understood.

MS. RENWICK: So that’s what we’re seeking
clarification on, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Solomon.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor. May I
address our Motion to Amend at the same time because, --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: -— as you observed, 1t’'s really the
same --

THE COURT: And Mr. Barney did address 1it.

MR. SOLOMON: -- thing?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: It just makes logical sense to do
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that. I appreciate 1it.

I’"11 try not to be as long as Mr. Barney, but --
we can get through this, but I think my arguments are
pretty clear.

THE COURT: He made a good record.

MR. SOLOMON: And I know you’ve read our brief.

I think factual background 1s really important
because I know we’re talking about jurisdiction --

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. SOLOMON: -- here but 1f you —-- but you really
need to get the gist of why we’re here and what we’re
trying to accomplish.

You know, Beatrice created a fairly sophisticated
estate plan before her death in January of 201Z2. Mr.
Barney alluded to the revocable living trust that was dated
1990. Caroline and Mr. Barney’s client were 50/50
beneficiaries under that revocable trust. Mom wanted
everything to go 50/50 to her kids. 1In fact, Caroline is
entitled to outright distributions of at least the
nonexempt share of that trust, but it’s now three and a
half years after her death and we haven’t received a dime,
not a dime.

Now Caroline was originally a co-trustee of that
trust, but in 2007, five years before mom died, mom became

incompetent. And so, the kids, Chris and Caroline, took

Page 29

CHRISDAVIS000075




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

over as co-trustees under the terms of that trust and they
agreed between them that Chris would do all the financial
details with respect to mom’s estate and Caroline would
take care of all of the healthcare issues. And Caroline
executed a delegation of authority making Chris, 1n
essence, all the power of the trustee of the revocable
trust and that was done March 22, 2007. Caroline was --
she 1s an attorney still. She’s now a mediation attorney,
but 1n 2013 she owned a nonprofit in the doing court
appointed advocacy for indigents and was very busy doing
that. Chris was the business person so he took care of the
business.

And then 1n addition to the 1living trust, we have
the trust that we’re dealing with here today which 1s the
Family Heritage Trust. That’'s also -- let’s see. That was
dated 2000 and it was amended, as you know, by the 1°°
amendment, February 24, 2014, and Carocline 1s an equal 50
percent beneficiary of that trust also under Article 8§,
Section 1.

Now, the trust’s own entities -- we knew about the
Family Heritage Trust owning FHT Holdings, LLC, and we
believe, although we’ve never been able to get confirmation
because of what I'm going to tell you next, that the
revocable trust owns the Davis Family Office, which is a

Missourili entity.
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We knew that 1in -- even before mom died, we knew
that locans were being taken, but we didn’t know a lot of
details and after, -- and, frankly, Caroline didn’t care
because mom was still alive. But after mom died and she
became a current 50 percent beneficiary of all of mom’s
estate, she started asking Chris: What’s goling on? What’s
going on with these loans? What are they being used for?
Are you getting -- why am I not -- am I getting any benefit
from these? And wouldn’t talk to her. Wouldn’t tell her
anything.

So, she hired counsel in Washington, a lady named
Vance, Mary Anne Vance, to obtain the information and she
started corresponding with Chris and they got nowhere. And
then they retained my firm and we reached out to Dunham on
August 21°%, 2014, who very cordially provided everything
they had at that point at least.

Then we sent a letter to Chris dated August 26HZ
2014 requesting information, documentations regarding the
loan. No response. We sent a follow-up correspondence on
September 23'®, 2014. No response. And then finally I get
a letter from Harriet Roland here who tells me that she’s

been retained and that she has received a slew of documents

from Chris, she’s in the process -- boxes of them. In the
process of reviewing them. She’s outlining the various
entities. She was creating this diagram and spreadsheet to
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show the interplay between the estate planning entities and
that she would share all of that with me when she had 1t
done. Then all of a sudden, I get another letter from Ms.
Rowland saying Chris has told her not to cooperate and not
to provide us any information. And that’s the genesis of
having to file the petition here.

Now, we don’t have a lot of information regarding
these loans and all we’ve sought 1in this petition, other
than asking the Court to assume jJurisdiction so you can
give us this relief, at least at this point, 1s information
about these loans. We know there’s a $4,000,000 line of
credit on a $35,000,000 policy held by the Heritage Trust.
We know or knew at some point that there was roughly
2,000,000 plus or minus borrowed against that line of
credit. We don’t know why the loans were made. Was there
any benefit to Caroline as a 50 percent beneficiary in
these loans? What was the money used for? Is there any
security for the loans? What’s the status of the loans?
Have any payments been made on the loans? What’s the
current balances of the loans? Are the borrowers in a
position to ever repay 1t? Are there any new advances on
the loans?

We got an e-mail recently from Harriet Roland that
sald in 2014 there was a contemplated loan again to Chris

individually, to the revocable trust, and to the Family
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Office, but we don’t know 1f that went through. Were those
loans -- were any of the loans that are outstanding ever
extended? Were -- for thOSE current loans and what was
that money for? Are any of the loans in default? Has
there been any collection efforts?

All stuff we’re entitled to know and we’re being
totally stonewalled by the -- by Chris, frankly, because
he’s the one --

THE COURT: Okay. Well, what’s really relevant
here because this 1s a Motion for Consideration 1s: Was
there an error by the Court previously? That’s what I
asked Mr. Barney and his position i1s you can’t take a
constructive -- make this a constructive trust and -- or,
B, you don’t have any jurisdiction.

So, with respect to those 1ssues, the new
evidence, as I said, that was significant to me, now we
have this affidavit which i1ndicates plain as day that, vyes,
while Christopher -- there may not have been notice to his
wife, the gquestion i1s how 1s that relevant? It’s kind of a
valid concern. I mean, 1t -- I read it the way you read
1t, which i1s spouse 1s a specific term of art in this
trust. There’s a reference to a spouse 1in Chapter 14,
Section o. If you’re going to be changing the situs, then
you have to give notice to all eligible beneficiaries, but

1f you look at the definition of who the beneficiary 1n
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Chapter 8, 1t references spouse, but you have to look at

how spouse 1s defined. Spouse 1s defined in 14 (4) (J) as

somebody who has been married 10 years.

I mean, I don’t see that --

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah. Can I walk --

THE COURT: -- there’s any other definition for
it. It’s —--

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, it will take me two
minutes.

THE COURT: -- pretty clear.

MR. SOLOMON: I know it’s a long trust. It will
take me two minutes to walk you through the key --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: -- provisions of the trust that show

that Mr. Barney’s argument about primary and secondary

beneficlary are simply incorrect. Can I take the time to

do that?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SOLOMON : Thank you. Do you have a copy of
the trust?

THE COURT: I do.

MR. SOLOMON: Great. All right. What we start
with page 3-1, --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: -— which 1s Article 3. It says —--
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1t"s: My Lifetime Beneficiaries. That’s the title of the
article.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. SOLOMON: And then you get down to the first

full paragraph, 1it’s about an inch. It says:

During my lifetime, except as otherwise provided
in this instrument, the beneficiary to this trust shall
be my children, my children’s spouses, my children’s
descendants, and any other natural person added as a
beneficiary pursuant to other provisions of this trust
agreement -- of this agreement which permits such
persons to be added as beneficiaries.

Now, that i1ncluded, at the time that i1t was done,

Cheryl Davis who was then currently married to Chris
because Beatrice was alive and 1t’s during her lifetime and
she was [indiscernible] calls her a primary beneficiary,
but she was a beneficiary and she might as well been a
primary beneficiary during her lifetime, but that changed.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. SOLOMON: And that changed on Section 11 on -

THE COURT: Correct.
MR. SOLOMON: -—- 3-10.
THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: There -—--
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THE COURT: Because mom dies.

MR. SOLMON: -— 1t says: This lifetime trust
shall terminate upon the death of the trust maker --

THE COURT: Exactly.

MR. SOLOMON: -- and the principal and any -- and
undistributed net income shall be distributed under the
articles that follow below.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: All right. So then you go below.

The first thing you come to 1s Article 8 on 8-1. 1In
Section 1 of that, the first paragraph, 1t says:

All trust property not previously distributed in
the terms of my trust agreement, shall be divided into
equal, separate shares so as to create one equal share
for each of my then living children and one equal share
for each of my deceased children.

There were no deceased children. So that means

Chris and Caroline. Right? So now we know under the post
lifetime trust, it’s in two shares.

You go to Section 3, which is on page 8-2, first
paragraph, about halfway down. I won’t read the whole
paragraph. It says:

During the lifetime of the named beneficiary of

any share, Chris and Caroline again, such named

beneficiary shall be the primary beneficiary of such
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share.

So that means Caroline and Chris are the only
primary beneficiaries of this post lifetime trust.

Then you go to page 8.4. And this is the only
status that Taria [phonetic] would have at this point and
1t says:

Distributions for primary beneficiary, spouse, and
descendants. My trust may make distributions from the
trust chair of a primary beneficiary to or for the
health, education, maintenance, support of a spouse of
a primary beneficiary 1f the spouse i1s living with the
primary beneficliary.

Well, first of all, 1t can’'t be a former spouse at

that point because --

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. SOLOMON: -— not living with him. So that
gets rid of the argument that they raised for the first
time about --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SOLOMON: -- Cheryl in the Reply.

All right. Then we turn to 8-13, Subsection 4.
That tells us what happens at Christopher’s death. It
says:

Upon the death of Christopher Davis, any property

remaining in his trust share shall be divided and
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allocated to the then living descendants of Christopher
Davis [1indiscernible], blah, blah, blah.

His wife no longer becomes a beneficiary. If she
ever qualified under the trust, Taria [phonetic] would lose
her rights upon his death because then i1t goes down tTo his
1ssue.

All right. Then we turn to the definitions, which
referring to page 14-1. It says:

For the purposes of this agreement, the following

words and phrases shall be defined as follows:

Now Mr. Barney spends an inordinate amount of time
on paragraph A but paragraph A has nothing to do with this
case.

THE COURT: No.

MR. SOLOMON: This i1is dealing with descendants
and spouses of descendants —--

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: -— to become even -- 1t has nothing
to do with this case.

And the key provision that Your Honor’s already

read 1s the definition of the -- on J of 14-4 where it
says: Before Taria [phonetic] can qualify, she has to be
married 10 years. She’s not a beneficiary. There’s no way

under the trust you can construe it to say that she’s a

current beneficiary and that’s important because 1f you
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turn to Article 14, Subsection 6, 1t says:

Changing the situs of the trust, except as
expressly provided herein, the situs of this agreement
or any sub trust established hereunder may be changed
by the unanimous consent of all beneficilaries then
eligible to receive mandatory discretionary
distributions of net income.

Not Taria [phonetic]. Okay. But let’s now move
to the other polints because the same paragraph goes on and
1t says:

With the consent of the acting protector and the
trustee thereof, which would have been Alaska USA at
that point, which shall be given only after the trustee
1s obtained advice of counsel as to the tax and other
consequences of a change in situs.

THE COURT: Now, Mr. Barney’s point that he
doesn’t think that the affidavit of the Alaska trustee
adequately lays out that she did, in fact, have advice.

MR. SOLOMON: It probably doesn’t and I wish I
knew that was an 1ssue at the time that I got it because we
didn’t, but what we do have 1s -- first of all, we start
with a proposition, Your Honor, and this 1s where Mr.
Barney has i1t completely backwards. The trust amendment 1s
presumed to be valid. He has the burden --

THE COURT: To prove.
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MR. SOLOMON: -- to prove otherwise. So the lack
of evidence 1s his problem, not ours, --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- number one.

THE COURT: Right. So, just for the record, 1it’s

Janet Tempel, T-E-M-P-E-L.

MR. SOLOMON: Yes.
THE COURT: Who 1s -- who was the Alaska trustee,
who signed her declaration saying: Once I provisionally

resigned, I just wailted to be told what was going to happen
and then I signed the final paperwork because it was --
then 1t was final.

MR. SOLOMON: But let’s take a look at a document

THE COURT: In February.

MR. SOLOMON: -- that answers most of the
questions all by itself that this Court has had the whole
time and that Mr. Barney repeatedly ignores and that 1is
Exhibit 5 of the Objection. My Objection to his Petition
for Reconsideration.

THE COURT: The resignation?

MR. SOLOMON: To his Petition for
Reconsideration.

THE COURT: Oh.

MR. SOLOMON: I misstated that. Our Objection to
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his Petition for Reconsideration. Exhibit 5. It’s called
a Resignation, --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: —— Release, Acknowledgement,
Consent, Indemnification.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. SOLOMON : Okay?

THE COURT: I’ve got that.

MR. SOLOMON : That was also dated February 24",

2014. First recital whereas AUTC, and that’s Alaska USA,

1s:

The currently serving trustee of the trust and has
stated that it 1s unwilling to continue to serve as
trustee and wishes to resign.

A recital saying they’re currently the trustee.

And then on page 2 at the top of that -- right before

paragraph number 2, the last sentence of paragraph number
1, number 1, 1t says:

AUTC and the protector hereby consent to changing

the situs of the trust from Alaska to Nevada.

Okay? Then we have as Exhibit 6, the following
exhibit, an e-mail from Dennis Briswan [phonetic] who says
in the second paragraph:

In 1999 and 2000 or so, I assisted attorney

Lehnardt in consulting and document drafting and his
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representation of B. Davis. This year, which means
2014, T was retained by Mr. Lehnardt in acting 1n his
capacity as trust protector to provide limited support
in changing the trust situs from Alaska, where I'm also
licensed to practice, to Nevada. I communicated with
both trust companies in documenting the transfer
consistent with the terms of the trust and the
requirements of the new jJurisdiction trustee, provide
an opinion of counsel with documentation supporting
trust protector action.

And then he says 1t concluded.

Yesterday, we contacted Mr. Briswan [phonetic] and
asked him to get us a copy of the opinion, and we got 1t,
and we filed i1t yesterday. And here is the opinion letter
and counsel has 1t.

Your Honor, may I approach?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I'm going to object --
when did this get filed?

THE COURT: Yeah, I don’'t --

MR. SOLOMON: It got filed yesterday and I have a
file stamped copy of 1it. You were served -—--

MR. BARNEY: And --

MR. SOLOMON: -- electronically.

MR. BARNEY: And with regard to this, has 1t been

Page 42

CHRISDAVIS000088




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

authenticated? I mean, let’s -- and i1s 1t an opinion for

the trustee or 1s 1t an opinion that Lehnardt got from his

counsel --

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, —--

MR. BARNEY: —-- because we’'re right back in the
same -—-

MR. SOLOMON: -— counsel can make all the

arguments that he wants during his time.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. SOLOMON: I didn’t --
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. SOLOMON: —-- interrupt him.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
MR. SOLOMON: The opinion is dated February 24",
2014, also the same day. It’s made to all applicable
parties addressed to it. In the third paragraph 1t says:
FHT reguires, quote, advice from counsel as to the
tax and other consequences in a change of situs, citing
Article 14, Section o©.
First sentence of the next paragraph: Nevada,
in my opinion, meets the requirements of an appropriate
Jurisdiction for FHT.
And then the next paragraph at the bottom, second
sentence:

This oplinion may be relied on by the law firm of
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Lehnardt and Lehnardt, LLC, and the trustee of the FHT
Trust, a —-—- 1t may not otherwise be relied upon by
others.

THE COURT: It’s not addressed to the trustee, but

-— 1t says to all applicable parties [1ndiscernible]. That
doesn’t -- 1t’s not —-- 1it’s addressed to Mr. Lehnardt.
MR. SOLOMON: Well, --

THE COURT: To his law firm.

MR. SOLOMON: -—- 1t’s sent to Mr. Lehnardt. It’s
to evervbody else.

Your Honor, again, he has the burden of proving
that this 1°° amendment was not regular. Every indication
shows that it was. If he can produce evidence that they
didn’t have this in hand, then that’s [indiscernible]
story, but that’s his burden.

THE COURT: But that gets us to the point of vyour
motion, which is, at this point in time, there’s now
sufficient evidence for the Court to just assume
Jurisdiction and the gquestion is what jurisdiction are vyou

asking the Court to assume?

MR. SOLOMON: I'm asking the Court to assume full
jurisdiction over the trust. You have a presumptively 1°" -
- valid 1°" amendment that was -- I’11 also say, Your Honor,

and I will answer your qgquestion the way you posed it, but

how can Chris raise this argument? He signed 1t all. He
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acted upon 1it. We don’t have Tarilia [phonetic] here. We
don’t have somebody who didn’t consent to all this coming
in here and trying to undo 1t.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: We have the very person who signed
and consented to all of this and who acted upon it, and who
assumed a role, an relied upon it to everybody’s detriment
coming 1n here now and saying: Oh, I'm not going to give
yvou the information and you can’t make me, Your Honor,
because you don’t have jurisdiction over me.

THE COURT: Well, that was my point about then
yvou’re leaving the trust adrift. So, yeah.

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. Fine. So, --

MR. SOLOMON: So, I'm asking Your Honor because
- and I'm a -——- I don't know if this has been mentioned, but
I think vyou know, it was 1n our brief, they filed an appeal
already from your order that they’re asking to be
reconsidered.

So, we’'re under a Honeycutt Motion at this point.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: Because that’s all we’re limited
to.

I'm asking this Court to enter an order that says
based on the document that you -- evidence presented so
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far, vyou’re assuming jurisdiction over the trust.

Now, I will also point out that -- and this came
as a surprise to me. You’ll recall that when we were here
for —-- originally arguing the Motion to Dismiss, Mr. Barney

stood up and started making all of his arguments about
Taria [phonetic], and this opinion letter, and the lack of
consent and I saild: These are all the first time I’ve ever
heard of any of this stuff. And, at the time -- apparently
he filed a Reply two days before the hearing
electronically, but we did not have possession of 1t and
this Court expressly said you didn’t even have a copy of it
at that point.

And so, when we got into this thing, Your Honor
was concerned about some of these issues. We hadn’t had
opportunity to address them like we now have in our
Petition to Amend and I threw out the word constructive
trust and 1t turns out that 1t’s pretty darn close. The
doctrine 1s a little bit different. It’s called de facto
trust and there’s a ton of authority throughout the country
that allows a Court to assume jurisdiction of a de facto
trust. It’s been recognized in Washington, Alabama, New
York, Oklahoma, Oregon. You can just Google the term and
find a ton of cases on 1t, including the Matter of
Irrevocable Trust of Michael McKean 183 P.3d 317, a

Washington appellate case in 2008.
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And the doctrine basically says: A person 1s a de
factor trustee where the person assumed the office of
the trustee under a color of right or a title and, two,
exercised the duties of the office. A person assumes
the position of a trustee under color of right or title
where the person asserts, quote, an authority that was
derived from an election or appointment no matter how
irregular the election or appointment might be. A de
facto trustee’s good faith actions are binding.

And I don’t even think we’re there. I think that
was probably what the order should have initially said,
but, at this point, when we got -- we’ve disposed of Mr.
Barney’s arguments that Taria [phonetic] didn’t get notice,
that -- and there’s supposedly no proof of -- that Alaska
USA consented or that there was any opinion given.

The opinion —-- the provision of the trust does not
regquire 1in any way, shape, or form that the trustee obtain
an 1lndependent attorney opinion. It jJust says the trustee
has to obtalin advice from counsel. And we have evidence
that that occurred and whether or not they want to contest
1t 1s theilr problem, but they haven’t met their burden of
showing 1t didn’t happen or the presumption that it’s a
valid and regular transfer and -- of situs pursuant to a
valid amendment.

THE COURT: So what’s the -- who —-- what’s the
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Jurisdiction over? Because, as I said, there’s a lot of
case law 1n Nevada that says you can do discovery to
establish jurisdiction -- questions of jJurisdiction. So
we’ ve now addressed the questions of jJurisdiction to the
Court’s satisfaction and the -- perhaps we were inartful 1n
our terminology in taking jJurisdiction saying let’s do
discovery and find out who has got jJurisdiction because
otherwise, as you said, this de facto trust, you leave a
trust adrift. So you’re going to find out who'’s got
Jurisdiction. We’ve now satisfied ourselves that this
Court has jurisdiction, what 1s that jJurisdiction over?

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, 1s there a new theory
being advanced here because de facto --

THE COURT: Okay. I listened to you for a half an
hour, Mr. Barney.

MR. BARNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: You’ll get a chance.

MR. SOLOMON: It 1is not a new theory. Your
Honor, I'11 respond to that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: 1t was I misstated constructive
trust. It should have been de facto trust. That’s all I'm
trying to make a point of. It’s the exact same theory that
the -- that Your Honor stated and articulated and that 1is

we —-—- all the parties got together and they all agreed in
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good faith to sign documents that had recitals saying 1t
was all proper and transfer the trust, hire Dunham Trust
who accepted 1t, who acted in good faith, and started
administering the trust, Christopher took over the position
of 1nvestment manager and, as a result of that, became the
sole manager of an LLC, a Nevada LLC, and has been managed
here for a year and a half. That i1is a de facto trust.
That 1is a —-- what Your Honor intended to say 1s a
constructive trust.

But we now say and we are now requesting in our
Motion to Amend that this Court alter or amend the order
and assume Jjurisdiction over the trust under NRS 164.010
and find that the transfer of the trust situs was
consistent with the trust terms. That’s what we think
we’re entitled to.

We are asking this Court to certify its intent to

4%, 2015 order so that the appeal

so modify its June 2
initiated by Christopher can be remanded back to this Court
for the entry of an order granting the relief in our Motion
to Amend. And that’s required, as Your Honor knows, under
Foster versus Dingwall and Honeycutt versus Honeycutt. But
that’s what we’re requesting with respect to that.

Now, can I move on with respect to -- well, we're

also asking for sanctions, Your Honor, under 7.00(b). Your

Honor knows that the Court has authority to grant sanctions
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when an attorney or a party without Just cause presents to
the Court a motion which is obviously unnecessary and
unwarranted, nothing -- each and every one of the issues
that Chris has regurgitated in this Petition for
Reconsideration 1s demonstratively wrong or false. The
only thing new that he’s added is Taria’s [phonetic]
affidavit, which is irrelevant because of the very reason
that we’ve already discussed. Her consent was not required
to transfer situs. Alaska USA was the acting trustee at
the time 1in which the agreement of transfer was executed,
and an opinion of counsel was obtained, and Cheryl was not
the beneficiary to the trust at the time the situs was
transferred.

We’re asking for an award of our attorneys' fees
for having to oppose this essentially frivolous,
unnecessary, and unwarranted Petition for Reconsideration.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. SOLOMON: I think we still have a protective
order that they’re seeking [1ndiscernible].

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I just want to address
obviously a few of the issues that Mr. Solomon raised.

First, I don’t have the burden. It’s his Petition
to Establish Jurisdiction under 164.010. It’s his burden

to prove that jJurisdiction 1is proper based upon the
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condition precedent. It’s not my burden. I didn’t bring
the petition, Your Honor. He did. And, therefore, 1t 1is
not my burden and that i1s clearly an error in this matter.
He has lots of gquestions. He says: I want to
know about this policy, I want to know about that policy, I
want to know about this policy loan. Ask the Alaska
trustee, ask the custodian of the policy. Issue them a
subpoena. That’s what I do, Your Honor. If I’'ve got an
out of state defendant, I issue an out of state subpoena,
but 1t’s clear that their burden 1s to prove that this was

done properly so that they can obtain jurisdiction under

164.010.

Now, this argument about de facto trustee, this 1s
the first argument. Agalin, 1t’s like the last hearing.
Tt’s a new argument raised at the hearing itself. If the

Court is inclined to take jJurisdiction, I want the ability
brief this. I want the ability to respond to what I didn’t
get to respond to before, which was his additional
arguments that he inserted and successfully getting put
interlineated into the order.

As to Taria’s [phonetic] status as a beneficiary,
he’s argued at great length that Taria [phonetic] and
Christopher were beneficiaries and that’s been my argument
all along. They were beneficiaries. While these loans

were gilven, he was a beneficiary. The terms of the trust
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don’t even require him to account for the prior acts of the
Alaska trustee. He can’t even be required under the terms
of the trust and yet that’s what this is about.

And, 1in fact, 1f you look at the pleadings, this
1s about to verify, according to them, what documents they
already have in their possession. That’s i1mproper and it’s
abusive.

Now, with regard to Taria [phonetic] as a
beneficilary, Mr. Solomon quoted 8.2. He says:

During the lifetime of the named beneficiary of
any share, such named beneficiary shall be the primary
beneficiary of such share. Thereafter, 1f the share 1is
subdivided into separate shares for my descendants or
otherwise, the person for whom the separate share 1is
established shall be the primary beneficiary thereof.

So there’s more primary beneficiaries. And what
1s the primary beneficiary? The primary beneficilary 1S
somebody who ultimately qualifies.

Now, the qualification he set forth, he says:
Well, let’s look at J. He doesn’t really refer to A. We
know absolutely it does. In J, 1t refers exactly to A to
define what a marital union is and that marital union 1is
actually defined as something less than 10 years 1f there’s
an involuntary separation. So, this argument that this

qualifying period had -- 1s simply so that she can get a
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discretionary share after the primary shares are
[indiscernible], then there’s no reason to qualify. There

THE COURT: Well, here’s the problem. I —-

MR. BARNEY: -- Jjust simply isn’t.

THE COURT: She wasn’t married to him when mom
died. Was she?

MR. BARNEY: No, she was not.

THE COURT: So, --

MR. BARNEY: And we haven’t addressed Cheryl’s --

THE COURT: So she —--

MR. BARNEY: We haven’t addressed Cheryl’s issue
at all.

THE COURT: -- wasn’t married to him when mom
died. So she’s —--

MR. BARNEY: And --

THE COURT: She has to start all over with the
sections that have to do with after mom dies and I just --
respectfully, Mr. Barney, I think you’re wrong on that. I
disagree with you on your analysis of that. I have read
all 110 pages. I agree with you. You’ve got to read the
whole thing. I don’t understand why Mr. Lehnardt wrote 1t
the way he wrote it, but it’s very thorough.

MR. BARNEY: Are you -—-

THE COURT: Interesting.
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MR. BARNEY: -- saying Mr. Lenhardt wrote the
trust?

THE COURT: It says on the front he did.

MR. BARNEY: Okay. So, —-- no, that’s good. T
Just want that fact for the record because Mr. Lehnardt
1sn’t here.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. BARNEY: He —--

THE COURT: It says right here: This Family
Heritage Trust prepared for Beatrice Davis by Stephen K.
Lehnardt and Kenneth Ziskin and Stan Miller.

MR. BARNEY: And Mr. Lehnardt isn’t here under
163.5555.

THE COURT: Right. And then it gives you the law
firm names Miller and Schrader, Kenneth Ziskin Law
Corporation, and Lehnardt and Lehnardt, LLC.

MR. BARNEY: Thank vyou, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So, this was drafted. She had very
thorough -- I mean, people in multiple states giving her
advice on her estate plan. It’s an interesting trust. I -
- she had very definite i1deas about what marriage was.
Anyway, so, I just disagree with you and --

MR. BARNEY: Well --

THE COURT: -- I -- as I said, the only new

evidence that you’ve given me 1is this -- now we have this
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affidavit from Taraja [phonetic] or whatever her name 1is.
MR. BARNEY: No, --

THE COURT: It helps. It actually helps because -

MR. BARNEY: We have new evidence in the form of
supposedly all of the arguments that they’re trying to
prove with regard to whether or not there was an opinion.
Okay. They’re the ones that --

THE COURT: And do you --

MR. BARNEY: -— [indiscernible] and they have the
duty. They have the duty because they have the burden.
Okay?

THE COURT: And we do not have the affidavit of
the previous trustee. So those are two things that we
didn’t have before that we now have.

So that’s what I have to look at. What have you
given me that’s new that would tell me -- and with all due
respect, when somebody gives me a Motion for
Reconsideration and the Reply brief to the Motion for
Reconsideration is ©3 pages long, I have to say to myself:
How could I possibly have been mistaken about something 1f
1t takes them 63 pages in the Reply brief to explain to me
how I was wrong about something that was so clear 1
shouldn’t have gotten it wrong the first time? I, you

know, -- 1t’s insane.
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MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, please --

THE COURT: And, I mean, I had a law clerk --

MR. BARNEY: -— understand --

THE COURT: -- whose father was a federal judge
and who used to say to me I wouldn’t read this, my father
wouldn’t read this, because 1it’s over 30 pages. And I
always told him, with all due respect to his father who 1is
a federal judge and he has a lifetime appointment and I
don’t, so I still read things. So I read the 03 pages and
I -- seriously, how can there be anything so clear that I
obviously got 1t wrong if 1t takes you 63 pages in a Reply,
not even in your original motion, to tell me how wrong I
am?

MR. BARNEY: Well, Your Honor, let’s first
consider what that 67 pages 1s. It’s my Reply. It’s my
Objection. And the Objection also -- and the Reply deal
with 1ssues that actually subseqgquently were withdrawn by
Mr. Solomon at my request concerning Rule 11 Motion and —--

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MR. BARNEY: —-— he withdrew those from that. So,
yvou can kind of understand why when somebody spends
numerous pages withdrawing what he says from the record and
that it’s really two pleadings in one, I think you can get
to understand that we’re kind of dealing with all of the

misrepresentations that were made about me, which clearly
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were because they were withdrawn.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, so -- as 1t’s been
pointed out, technically this has been appealed. So we
have -- 1it’s essentially a Honeycutt motion, but the point
1s in Nevada there 1s substantial case law that says you
can do discovery on jJurisdictional issues and I would cite

you To the two most recent cases being Viega, V-I-E-G-A,

328 P.3" 110 -- 1152 and Fulbright Jaworski, 342 P.3"™ 599
or 597. I can’t even read my own -- 997,

Like I salid -- as you said, my handwriting 1s very
poor. It’s difficult to read. So, I can’t even read my

own handwriting but these are two cases decided in May of
last year and February of this year and they talk about
this concept. In Nevada, we’ll let you do discovery tTo see
1f you can establish your jurisdiction.

So that’s what we allowed to have happen here. T
understand vyour argument that the Court shouldn’t have
taken jurisdiction and maybe called the constructive trust
because that’s like a different form of a remedy, but, as I
sald at the time, my concern was you’re leaving this trust
adrift while we try to figure out discovery because over
here we’ve got —-- people, who everybody admits are acting
in good faith as they act as trustees. Nobody said
anything about Dunham other than, yes, they were

administering 1t appropriately and we don’t know 1f
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anything’s gone wrong with them. I mean, they’re just over
here and they’re like: What are we supposed to do?

Because now you’re telling us that we’re not properly
appointed.

Somebody has to take jurisdiction and take this in
their hands and say: Okay, figure out what state we’re
going to go forward 1n because otherwise you’ve got a
trustee sitting over here managing things without any
authority and it’s just a big mess. Somebody has to take
Jurisdiction.

So, 1f the Court takes jJurisdiction and you’re
saylng 1it’s wrong because 1t’s not technically a
constructive trust, okay, fine. As I said, I think Nevada
case law says I can take jJurisdiction. It’s not in the
context of a trust. It’s 1in the context of corporate
litigation and the law firm -- an out of state law firm and
figure out whether there’s jurisdiction here. And that’s
the purpose and intent of taking Jurisdiction initially was
to figure out Jurisdiction.

I —-- your reconsideration now, though 1t’s
technically on appeal, so all I can say 1s advisory. What
I would do, with all due respect, I'm not inclined to
reconsider this because I think that the evidence that’s
been provided only shows more specifically that Taraja

[phonetic] 1s not entitled to any kind of notice, that the
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people who were entitled to notice got notice and signed
off on it, and we have this dispute over whose burden of
proof 1t is. Yes, I understand that they have the initial
burden of proving 1t, but then when you’re challenging it
and saying, no, you didn’t meet these standards, then 1t’s
your burden of proof and the evidence you’ve given me 18
that Taraja [phonetic], who married this guy after his
mother died, so 1t’s the trust after his mother dies, I
don't think she’s entitled to anything. I think that’s the
way 1t reads. So I don't think she’s entitled to this kind
of notice.

So, I think we’re good going forward with
Jurisdiction here. I think the people who had notice got
notice and they got the advice that they needed.

MR. BARNEY: Well, Your Honor, --

THE COURT: And that would be my inclination. If
this 1s sent back, would be to say: Now having had
Jurisdictional 1ssues addressed, which i1is what the Court
was 1ntending to have done, which 1s what we’re allowed to
do under these cases, do jJurisdiction and to the -- to
determine who had -- do discovery to determine who has
Jurisdiction. We have to take jJurisdiction over this trust
in order to do so and perhaps Mr. -- I was wrong 1in
accepting Mr. Solomon’s description of that as a

constructive trust. Technically, you’re right. It’s not a
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constructive trust, but we needed to somehow assume
Jurisdiction on some temporary basis to allow this
Jurisdictional discovery to take place.

Now we’ve got some additiconal information and,
frankly, the additional information makes me more convinced
than ever that this 1s where the jJurisdiction is because I
believe that the trust was properly changed to a Nevada
trust with the full notice to the people who were entitled
to get 1t under Section 14-6 and I think it’s a Nevada
trust now.

SO, —-

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, --

THE COURT: -- that would be my inclination 1f 1t
1s sent back from the Supreme Court would be to say: Yes,
I think discovery has shown us that this i1s where this case
belongs.

MR. BARNEY: And, Your Honor, I want to reserve
time for my co-counsel obviously in this case because she
hasn’t had an opportunity to address the Court, but I --
I'm looking at Article 8 and you’re saying: Well, 1t was a
term of art, spouse. I agree with you. It actually was a
term of art. So why 1in Article 38 1s it defined again as
living with the primary beneficiary? If it’s a term of
art, you don’t need to redefine it. Actually —--

THE COURT: No. You have a preliminary
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qualification.

to them for 10 years and who 1s living with them.

the additional definition.

Oor a new definition.

A spouse 1s somebody who has been married

That’s
It’s not a separate definition

It’s the overlying definition for the

entire case, for the entire trust, i1is 10 years and then you
have other gqualifiers through -- for other -- at other

stages of the trust.

MR. BARNEY: Yeah, and let me address -- let me
address what --

THE COURT: I’'m done. I'm just done. We’re done.
I mean, you’ve had an hour. We’ve made, I think, a very

good record here.

MR. BARNEY: Well, --
THE COURT: I’'m done.
MR. BARNEY: I know, but, Your Honor, there is an

issue. He’s saying 1in his description of spouse, he’s

actually going forward and he’s saying: Look, this spouse

is one of two things. At the time of the signing, which 1is

Cheryl, and he’s saying that everything terminates at the

time of the lifetime trust. If it terminates, then the
following sections indicate that there’s supposed to be a
distributed share that’s supposed to be passed out to the
then beneficiaries.

So, I don't think that that’s what 1t means. I

think that the trust continued on because 1if we were to

Page 61

CHRISDAVIS000107




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

take that argument then we have to argue essentially that
Cheryl 1s a beneficiary and that she was entitled to notice
and the reality is that’s --

THE COURT: No, she’s not, because she -- because
the additional qualifier, she’s no longer living with him.
She’s no longer his -- by definition, his spouse, because
spouse 1s defined -- that marriage was terminated and the
way 1t’s defined in this definition is —--

MR. BARNEY: But that’s not how it’s defined 1n
the trust for the distributed share.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: And that’s very clear, Your Honor,
from the terms --

THE COURT: It —-

MR. BARNEY: -— of the trust.

THE COURT: And here’s the thing. If that marital
union exists continuously for a period of 10 years and the
individual is not legally separated from the person under a
decree of divorce or separate maintenance. She’s no longer
qualified as a spouse. She was divorced. Cheryl doesn’t
have any rights.

MR. BARNEY: Well, we respectfully can disagree
on that point.

THE COURT: Okay. I think we’re going to.

MR. BARNEY: Yeah.

Page 62

CHRISDAVIS000108




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: So, at this point, let’s jJust wrap
this up.

MR. BARNEY: Okay. Well, --

MS. ROLAND: Your Honor, 1in all due respect, may
I have jJust a couple of minutes of the Court’s time 1f I --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. ROLAND: I understand you’re frustrated and I
won’t reargue Mr. Barney’s points.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: Is this on the same motion or 1s
this on the --

THE COURT: I've got no i1idea what 1t’s on.

MR. BARNEY: TIt’s the same motion.

MS. ROLAND: This -- 1t actually overlaps
[indiscernible], Your Honor.

First of all, just to clarify a couple of
statements. All of the -- the revocable trust is currently
in, as Mr. Solomon stated, 1in dispute in Missouri. The --
all of the family LLCs and the Davis Family Office are also
entities created and administered in Missouri. Presumably,
those will be called into that Court if the lawsult goes
forward there.

Mr. Solomon stated and just oversimplified that
Caroline i1s a half beneficiary of the FHT. That --

potentially, she’s half, but it’s subject to when’s -- to
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Christopher’s issues remalinder Iinterest because, at this
polint in time, Caroline has no remainder 1nterest. I —-
no issue to take the remainder interest on her part. So
it’s not a 50/50.

With regard to the loans, and presumably some
discovery would go forth on those, but those are loans
taken by the Alaska trustee and some of the money was then
loaned to Christopher and to other beneficiaries by the
Alaska trustee. It wasn’t a matter of Caroline
participating in those loans or how that impacted her
interest because the trustee borrowed 1t from the insurance
policy. Those are questions for after the death of one of
the beneficiaries as far as how any outstanding loans would
be allocated.

Dunham has not put forth anything before this
Court and or —-- discussions with Dunham would i1ndicate that
none of the loans are in default and that there are no
questions with regard to those loans. And the trustee 1s
certainly authorized to go forward and would even -- before
this Court took jJurisdiction, to protect its own rights in
those particular loans.

With regard to the documents 1n my possession, Mr.
Solomon characterized them as boxes. Unfortunately they’re
electronic boxes. So the discovery 1n this i1s a bit more

than Just going through boxes of papers. I wish 1t were
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that -- that it would be that simple.

With regard to the revocable trust, back to that

Just to [1ndiscernible] 1ssue, Caroline was also -- and 1s
also a one-half trustee to that trust. She had trustee
powers over that trust -- over the revocable trust and

does, even though she delegated them to Christopher under
another document that’s before the Court in Missouri.
With regard to the FHT loans, Caroline at any

time, could and can still request lcocans from a trustee of

the FHT. She has -- to our knowledge has never requested
loans. The fact that Christopher required loans from the
trustee --

THE COURT: But I'm -- how 1s any of this relevant

to the issue of my reconsideration because, agailin, 1t’s on

appeal. The Court can say I'm wrong and then vyou’re back
here --

MS. ROLAND: No, Your Honor. I —-

THE COURT: -— [indiscernible].

MS. ROLAND: -— agree. It 1sn’t. I’'m just

housekeeping as far as some of the statements that Mr.
Ssolomon made.

THE COURT: Okay. Okay.

MS. ROLAND: And I think because you’re done, I'm
done at this point, too.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, am I going to be giliven
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the opportunity to brief these new arguments because he’s
made this argument about this de facto jurisdiction that
he’s now raised? I didn’t get a chance to address the
constructive trust and ended up having to file an appeal.
T would at least like to brief this because we don’t have
an order, frankly, right now that i1s clear and he wants to
go forward 1in a deposition tomorrow against my client with
an order that i1is --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARNEY: It sounds like this Court --

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BARNEY: -- has sailid 1s not correct as 1t
regards constructive trust.

THE COURT: Right. Well, here’s the issue. It’s
on appeal. So all I can say 1s what would I do if 1it’s
remanded. If 1t’s remanded, I would indicate that -- my
intention would be to say I think that our purpose here was
to do sufficient discovery to figure out what the
Jurisdiction 1is; does this Court, in fact, have
Jurisdiction?

And I think we now have sufficient discovery to
answer that question in the affirmative and I think this
Court does have jurisdiction. I think that the two things
that we needed were the two affidavits, that of the Alaska

trustee and that of the spouse of Christopher, both of
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which answer any questions that we had about notice and/or
the right to notice.

And I think Taraja [phonetic] didn’t have the
right to notice. The trustee indicates that she was acting
in any authority she felt she had retained. So I think
we’'re done. So I think there’s jurisdiction here. If 1t’s
remanded, we can take complete jurisdiction.

So what have we got right now? We’ve got -- what
we’ve got 1s limited jurisdiction that we took at the time
because we weren’t going to -- and that’s all 1t can go
forward on because you —-- 1t’s on appeal and i1t wasn’t
stayed, so they can go forward on —-- to the extent that we
took -- the Court said, vyes, I'11l take jurisdiction. And I
thought what we told you guys at the time was we’re taking
this jurisdiction to figure out -- let me see here.

All right. Christopher has been directing the
trust 1in Nevada and everybody involved has relied on this
amendment as being proper. There’s no affidavit that
there’s any other beneficiary that existed at the time of
the 1°° amendment was signed. And that’s been satisfied.

To my satisfaction, there i1s no other -- there 1s nobody
else.

So the Court has jurisdiction, quote, as a
constructive trust. If that’s a technical error as a

matter of law. On remand, the Court can address that and
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say you’'re right, it’s not technically considered a
constructive trust, but you needed some sort of
Jurisdiction to allow discovery to be done so that we could
address this i1ssue of who’s got this jJurisdiction. Now I'm
satisfied that we have jurisdiction, so 1f 1t’s remanded, I
would take complete jurisdiction.

On the Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the

Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust 1s granted.

The petition to assume jurisdiction over Christopher
Davis as an 1nvestment trust advisor is granted without
prejudice.

If we'’ve got figured out that there was no
Jurisdiction, then naturally they can still get out of it.

The Court further ordered Petition to Assume

Jurisdiction over Stephen K. Lehnardt was denied until
a more definite statement was filed.

Remember? It wasn’t denied in its entirety. It
was denied until a more definite statement was filed. We
don’t have any. We don’t understand the jJurisdiction over
him would be or what the basis would be. So, 1t was denied
without prejudice for a more definite statement.

The Petition to Confirm Dunham 1s granted and it
1s further ordered immediate disclosure of documents and
information from Christopher Davis 1s granted as to the

information in his possession and the Motion to Dismiss was
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otherwise denied.

I mean, to me, we were —-- he —-- 1t was 1n his
capacity as investment advisor. That was pretty clear that
-— assume —-- to assume jurisdiction over Christopher Davis

as 1nvestment trust advisor.

MR. BARNEY: That’s not what the order said, Your
Honor. It says:

And in his capacity as manager of FHT Holdings.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: No, 1t doesn’t, Your Honor.

MR. BARNEY: That was the interlineation on the
order. I mean, I --

MR. SOLOMON: That has nothing to do with assuming
Jurisdiction, what he’s asked to produce.

MR. BARNEY: I -- Your Honor, I’'m just looking at
a moving target. First 1t was constructive trust, now 1it’s
de facto, neither of which I’ve been able to brief this
Court on.

THE COURT: No. Unfortunately, Mr. Barney, it 1is
-— right now, that’s on appeal. So I can’t change it. All
I can do 1s say 1f 1t’s remanded, this i1s what I would
change it to. I -- I'm -- I can’t -- I’'m deprived of
Jurisdiction to change 1t because there 1s an appeal.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I would ask you to stay

then your order so that we can get a clear understanding
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because right now, 1f they’re able to go forward, we can’t
basically take back everything that is -- this Court 1is
golng to require under what -- this Court has already said
1f it’s remanded, 1t will change.

MR. SOLOMON: There 1s no stay motion pending.
There is no basis for a stay.

MR. BARNEY: I'm making an oral motion, Your
Honor, because this i1is —-

MR. SOLOMON: No.

MR. BARNEY: This 1s clearly unjust 1f he’s
allowed to argue yet another alternative theory that this
Court said it would adopt 1if it was on remand without me
giving -- having the opportunity to address and brief this.

THE COURT: No, it’s not his alternative theory.
I'm -- what I’'m saying 1s that discovery was done such that
1t satisfied me that that he Court has jurisdiction,
period, end of story. We have jurisdiction. I’'m not
saylng 1t’s not constructive versus de facto. I’'m saying
we maybe used the wrong term to allow us to do discovery,
but now the discovery has been done. I am now satisfied
that there 1is sufficient evidence here that satisfies the
requirements of this trust as to the —-- that there was a
proper amendment and the Court has jurisdiction, period,
end of story. Not that I would say 1t was de facto. I'm

saylng we have Jjurisdiction.
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MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, what basis for the
business that Chris 1s conducting here 1s the basis for
164.010 jJurisdiction or de facte? I mean, this 1s a new
theory, but I mean, what basis is there to let this go
forward in discovery —-- what -- just even based upon the
order itself. What did those interlineations -- could you
clarify what those interlineations on the order i1tself say?
Just so that we at least know what the interlineated order
means?

THE COURT: Where 1s that order?

[Collogquy between the Court and staff]

THE COURT: All right. Okay. ©So, the inter --
what I interlineated was that:

Immediate disclosure of documents and information
from Christopher D. Davis 1s granted as to all
information in his possession, custody, or control.

MR. BARNEY: Okay. So, 1s 1t possession, comma,
custody control or 1s that a line above 1t?

THE COURT: No. It’'s just inserting —--

MR. BARNEY: Oh, okay. So that’s an insertion
line? Okay.

THE COURT: -- 1n 1ts possession, custody, or
control.

MR. BARNEY: Custody or control in his -- 1f you

could continue? I’'m making notes.
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THE COURT: You're right. It doesn’t have to be
in his possession because he may not have this with him at
his home, but he has somebody who -- he has an agent or
somebody that works for him that’s got it, so 1it’s it
within his control. I mean, that’s what I meant by that.

MR. BARNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: Is that it’s within his possession,
custody, or control.

In his role as investment trust advisor and 1in his

role as a manager of FHT Holdings.

MR. BARNEY: So that’s an “N” because 1t's --
there’s a -- 1t look like ™“O”.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. BARNEY: TIt’'s an “I” not an “0O"7?

THE COURT: And in his role as a manage -- as

manager of FHT Holdings.

MS. ROLAND: Your Honor, if I may, Mr. Solomon and
I have a long day tomorrow as he 1s deposing Christopher
Davis. Possibly you’re willing to give us some guidance so
that we’re not on the phone with vyour office or the
Discovery Commissioner as far as, and I'm not trying to be
facetious here, what all information is. Igs that from the
time that Christopher Davis took his office as investment
trust advisor forward or are we goiling back and scooping 1n

all of the past transactions --
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THE COURT: Absolutely.

MS. ROLAND: If you could give me jJust a moment,
Mark, --

MR. SOLOMON : Okay.

MS. ROLAND: Are we —--—

THE COURT: The information --

MS. ROLAND: Are we pulling in the past
transactions from Alaska Trust Company that then forwarded
over to Dunham Trust Company and the lcans no matter 1f --
because some of those loans from -- were to Beatrice
herself. So, when -- I think we need some guidance to try
to limit this or to let us know where we are goilng with 1it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: I"d like my protective order heard
though first 1f we could.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. The protective
order 1s denied. Okay. So, yeah. I mean, I'm -- he —--

MR. SOLOMON: Can I be heard on that issue? I --

THE COURT: OQOkay. I’ve got five minutes.

MR. SOLOMON: Okay. I’'11 make i1t guick, Your
Honor.

MR. BARNEY: May I argue my motion or does —-- 18
1t just a response?

MR. SOLOMON: I don’t know where we are

procedurally. I Jjust heard Harriet Roland get up and make

Page 73

CHRISDAVIS000119




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

a pitch to the Court and I want to respond to 1t.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. SOLOMON: Now that’s what I'm trying to --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- do and I think I have a very
cogent response to that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SOLOMON: All right. And that is this. Your

June 24-"

, 2015 order, which you just read, assumes
Jurisdiction over Chris as the investment trust advisor and
ordered to produce these documents and information,
[indiscernible] as such, and as manager of FHT. FHT
Holdings 1s a Nevada LLC. Chris is the sole manager. His
Secretary of State filing shows a Nevada address for that.
163.5555 says that i1if he accepted his appointment as a
trust advisor, he submitted himself to the jurisdiction of
this Court. That’s 1n personam jurisdiction, Your Honor,
because there’s no such thing as in rem jurisdiction over a
person.

Chris i1s the sole investment manager. He has sole
responsibility for the loan receivables, whether they were
made during his tenure or whether they were made prior.
He’s the one who has to know what the status 1s even if

they were made before him because he’s managing those as

the current investment advisor.
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Their entire argument, which I'm sure we’re going
to hear again, 1s that this Court can only order him to
produce information he has as the trust investment advisor
and that 1s technically absurd when you think about it.
What he’s saying 1s: Caroline, I'm your fiduciary. I have
a duty of full disclosure to you, because, remember
163.5555 expressly says he’s the fiduciary. I have a
fiduciary duty and full disclosure duty, but I don’t have
to tell you what I know even 1f it affects your interest 1in
this trust because I know that information as maybe the
borrower of the loans and not technically as the investment
advisor who manages those very loans. That’s absurd and it
1s agalnst the law.

We are entitled to know, since he 1s currently
managing those loans, all the information he has about
those loans that 1n any way concern or affect my client’s
interest 1n the trust. There’s a number of cases which we
already cited in our brief, one of which says:

The Court may direct a fiduciary to exhibit all
information within 1ts control which bears on the
fortunes of the estate and to take whatever actions may
be necessary to get the required data.

That’ s the matter of [indiscernible] will, which

we cilted.

Another case, In Re: Stewers Estate [phonetic],
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which we also cited, there, the executors of an estate, one
of whom was also an officer and director of a corporation
that was only partially owned by the estate, opposed the
beneficiary’s request for information that the executors
had 1in their possession, custody, and control as the
director. The Court said this:

The activities of an executor 1in a corporate
affairs and his knowledge of the actions of others and
running affairs are proper subjects of 1nquiry as long
as they affect the trust’s interest.

We’re entitled admittedly [indiscernible] assume
Jurisdiction over him as the investment advisor, but we'’re
entitled to know what information he has with respect to
the facts that affect Caroline’s interest in this trust and
contrary to Ms. Roland’s statement earlier, my client 1s
currently a 50 percent beneficiary of the Heritage Trust.
She may lose her interest 1f she doesn’t have children at
some polint in the line, but that’s not the status of the
matter of now.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: We’re entitled to this information,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. All right. S0, Mr.
Barney, I'm goling to —-- because we’ve dealt with the

Petition for Reconsideration, we’ve dealt with the Motion
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to Alter or Amend, we’ve dealt with the Objection. The
only thing left 1s the Motion for Protective Order or to
Quash or Modify the Subpoena.

As 1 said, technically this 1s on appeal. There
1s nothing I can do to alter or change my order other than
tell you that this i1s how I would change 1t 1f 1t does come
back. I think it’s sufficient. Discovery has been done
and additional evidence has been provided to the Court.

The Court has jurisdiction over this trust. It was a
properly amended trust. It i1s a Nevada trust. So that
would be the change I would make.

The order that I entered was that -- at that time,
the Court had jurisdiction over Christopher Davis as
investment trust advisor. I indicated that he need to turn
over 1nformation that he had i1n that capacity or 1in the
capacity of FHT, which 1s a Nevada corporation. So I have
Jurisdiction over the Nevada corporation.

So, the question 1s with respect to your Motion
for Protective Order or to Quash the Subpoena, I don't
think I can gquash it because I think that as a executive of
or an officer of a Nevada corporation or LLC, he’s subject
to the jJurisdiction of this Court. I don’t think there’s
any basis to quash it.

So the gquestion i1s either a protective order or

modifying the subpoena and you’ve got three minutes.
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MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

I think it’s pretty clear from the subpoena
they’ re requesting documents outside of the —-- what the
Court has just outlined and that’s clear and that’s why the
subpoena does need to be guashed. The reality 1s they’re
far adrift of what this Court has said. Even under the
interlineations that the Court created, they’re now saying
that they’re seeking 1in personam jurisdiction. Their
written pleadings sald that they weren’t seeking 1n
personam Jurisdiction.

THE COURT: Well, but, I mean, I can’t change
that. At this point in time, I can’t change that because
that’s what’s on appeal.

MR. BARNEY: What I need to --

THE COURT: So, —-

MR. BARNEY: What I need to know 1s under the
order, --

THE COURT: -—- 1t’s —-

MR. BARNEY: -- did —-- are you --

THE COURT: The order stands until we’re told by
the Supreme Court that either I’'m wrong, that there 1s no
Jurisdiction at all, or that they’re going to remand it and
say, you know, go ahead and do what you said you’d do if
1t’ s remanded.

MR. BARNEY: And then for this deposition that’s
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scheduled for tomorrow, we don’t know whether or not the
Court has assumed 1in personam jurisdiction over him as an
officer of FHT Holdings. 1Is that my understanding?
Because that’s clearly what we’re being led into. We’re
being led into a situation where you’re saying essentially
that I have jurisdiction over him. It must be in personam
1f that’s what you’'re —--

THE COURT: Right. Correct.

MR. BARNEY: -- claiming. He didn’t get served
with a summons. So, the question then becomes, because he
didn’t get served under Rule -- service of process, how

could there be 1in personam Jjurisdiction over Christopher

Davis and then subject him tomorrow to inquiry into that

role?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: It’s manifestly unjust. It --
this 1s new -- considering that they said they didn’t ask

for 1n personam Jurisdiction and now 1t sounds like the
Court 1s saying they’ve taken in personam jurisdiction
without service of process under Rule --

THE COURT: Well FHIT 1s not a party. FHT 1s a
Nevada corporation and 1f he 1s being -- if he 1s the
managing --

MR. BARNEY: He’s not the owner.

THE COURT: If he 1s the manager of -- 1f he’s the
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manager --

MR. BARNEY: Yeah. He’s an officer, exactly.

THE COURT: -- of the Nevada --

MR. BARNEY: He’s an officer that needs to be
served.

THE COURT: Of a Nevada corporation.

MR. BARNEY: —-- pursuant to Rule 4.

THE COURT: Okay. That’s a different issue. So
1f the corporation has not been served, then that’s a whole
different problem, but as I said, I -- in my view, there’s
a different problem with respect to FHT because FHT is a
Nevada entity. So FHT 1is subject to the jurisdiction of
this Court and a corporate entity in this jurisdiction, 1if
somebody wants to take a deposition or do any discovery
with respect to that corporate entity, you can do it
because -- 1if you do it the proper way.

And so, your position 1s that they’re not properly
noticed a deposition of him as the managing agent or
whatever it 1s that he is of FHT, then --

MR. BARNEY: That’s correct.

THE COURT: -- that’s a wvalid objection. So, 1if
that’s the limitation that you’re asking for 1is that FHT is
not -- has not been -- 1s a corporate entity that’s not a
party to this litigation, this Court has only taken

Jurisdiction over Christopher Davis to the extent that he
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1s the investment advisor for the trust, then what’s the
basis for him being deposed 1f he’s being deposed in his
capacity as investment advisor, then he needs to -- that’s
the scope. But if -- this corporate entity 1s subject to
the jurisdiction of this state. So they asked for the
records of the corporate entity, then the corporation is a
Nevada corporation and —--

MR. BARNEY: And if they want to get that
information without a duces tecum because they didn’t
notice 1f up for a deposition with a duces tecum --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: If they want to get hat information,
then they need to serve him personally under Rule 4 if they
want to get 1t as an officer or manager of the company.
This --

THE COURT: Because 1t’s not a party.

MR. BARNEY: Yeah. This Court 1s assuming that it
has Jjurisdiction over the FHT Holdings and even 1f the
Court goes in that direction, my question still goes to the
fact that this i1is improper 1in that they’re seeking to get
documents --

THE COURT: I’'m late for a meeting. So, that
would be my ruling 1s that i1f -- my Jjurisdiction over
Christopher Davis, I indicated, was only 1in his capacity as

the investment advisor. However, any documents that he has
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that are documents of this FHT, which is a Nevada entity,
are subject to being subpoenaed. If you’re saying they
weren’t properly subpoenaed, okay, fine. They weren’t
properly subpoenaed. Then raise that objection at the time
of your deposition and you’ll go forward from there, but
I'm done.

MR. BARNEY: And I -- Your Honor, I'm asking the
Court’s indulgence to set out that deposition until we have
a clear understanding of the order because, at this point,
there’s a lot of vagueness and lack of clarity 1n this
matter. So, less than essentially 24 hours, we now have a
different understanding of the order upon which supposedly
we’ re supposed to do a deposition tomorrow under and that’s
some of the concerns I have and I would respectfully
request that the Court --

THE COURT: Okay. Well, that’s really an issue --

MR. BARNEY: -- to consider [indiscernible].

THE COURT: -- for the Discovery Commissioner and
-— because she hears the discovery disputes for my cases
and so 1if you have a problem with it tomorrow, you can
certainly call her and indicate to her that the -- it’'s a
Nevada corporation but the Nevada corporation portion of it
wasn’t properly noticed because the only jurisdiction right
now that this Court has because 1it’s on appeal, so I can’t

change the order, 1s over him in his capacity as the
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investment trust advisor.

MR. BARNEY: This Court can set out the deposition
so that we can clarify this because there’s really no harm
to any of the parties in doing that.

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks.

MR. BARNEY: Thank vyou.

THE COURT: One minute, Mr. Soclomon, with respect
to moving to moving the date.

MR. SOLOMON: I'm not even goling to say anything
other than the fact that the deposition, just to clarify
the record, was of a party and we didn’t have to subpoena
him and all we’re asking him to do 1s appear, ask questions
consistent with this Court’s order of what he has to tell
us. That’s 1t.

THE COURT: Okay. Fine. All right. So those
issues I think need to be brought to the Discovery
Commissioner 1f you have problems with 1t tomorrow at the
deposition.

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you for your patience.

THE CLERK: [Indiscernible]?

THE COURT: I’'m just saying that that can be
brought to the Discovery Commissioner tomorrow. It’s a
discovery matter. It’s not me.

MS. RENWICK: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. HOOD: Thank vyou.
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MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 12:04 P.M.

*

*

* * *
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CERTIFICATION

I certify that the foregoing 1s a correct transcript from
the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the
above-entitled matter.

AFFIRMATION

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social
security or tax identification number of any person or
entity.

kbbb ot ot St ol Sl b bl

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER
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Anthony L. Barney

From: Dana Dwiggins <ddwiggins@sdfnvlaw.com>

Sent: Monday, October 5, 2015 10:59 AM

To: anthony@anthonybarney.com

Cc: Renee Guastaferro; Joshua M. Hood; Mark Solomon
Subject: Davis

Anthony,

In response to your email sent to Mark and Josh this morning, please be advised that we will not agree to stay this
matter.

Dana A. Dwiggins

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.

Cheyenne West Professional Center | 2060 W. Cheyenne Avenue | Las Vegas, NV 89129
Direct: 702.589.3505 | Office: 702.853.5483 |

Direct Facsimile: 702.473.2834 | Facsimile: 702.853.5485

Email: ddwiggins@sdfnviaw.com | Website: www sdfnviaw.com

i www.facebook.com/sdfnviaw

in www.linkedin.com/company/solomon-dwiggins-&-freer-ltd-

SC N

.«‘ 775 7™ il n T u e
L/ f‘\- ‘k /‘(J(\ ’3 r 'ﬂ‘{"") .

5% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This message contains confidential information and may also contain information subject to the attorney client
privilege or the attorney work product rules. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message
and contact Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd. at 702-853-5483. Any disclosure, copying, distribution, reliance on
or use of the contents of this message by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited.
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Anthony L. Barney

From: Anthony L. Barney <anthony@anthonybarney.com>

Sent: Monday, October 5, 2015 10:37 AM

To: 'Renee Guastaferro’; ‘hroland@rolandlawfirm.com’; jhood@sdfnviaw.com’;
‘'msolomon@sdfnvlaw.com’

Cc: ‘Allie Carnival’; ‘'secretary@anthonybarney.com’; ‘Tiffany Barney’;
‘zach.anthonybarney@gmail.com’

Subject: RE: In the Matter of Beatrice Davis, Case No. P-15-083867-T

Importance: High

Dear Mark/Joshua,

Due to the last court’s hearing ruling last Wednesday, | am requesting that you agree to stay all matters in this case until
the appeal can be heard and adjudicated. It is clear that the Court has reaffirmed at the last hearing on September 30,
2015 that it is enforcing the order currently on appeal. Therefore, we believe it is appropriate to request this stay.

Please let me know if you are willing to sign a Stipulation and Order in this regard. | would appreciate a response by the
end of the day and apologize for the immediacy of the request; however, | have been unwell and working in a limited
capacity since before the hearing on Wednesday. If you do not agree or if we, otherwise, do not hear a response from
you, then we plan to file an emergency request to stay all matters on an emergency basis (before the October motions
are heard). We will provide these pleadings to you by facsimile (without exhibits) and by mail with exhibits.

Sincerely,

Anthony L. Barney, Esq.

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W. Charleston Boulevard, Suite B
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102-1835
Telephone: (702) 438-7878

Facsimile: (702) 259-1116

E-Mail: office@anthonybarney.com

This e-mail message is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521 and is legally
privileged. This message and any files attached hereto are confidential and are for the sole use of the intended recipient.
IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT OF THE MESSAGE, PLEASE NOTIFY THE SENDER IMMEDIATELY BY RETURN E-
MAIL OR TELEPHONE (702.438-7878), DELETE THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE INCLUDING ALL ATTACHMENTS, AND DESTROY
ALL HARD COPIES. ANY UNAUTHORIZED REVIEW, DISTRIBUTION, DISCLOSURE, COPYING, USE, OR DISSEMINATION,
EITHER WHOLE OR IN PART, IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you are the intended recipient, please be aware that since e-
mails can be altered electronically, the integrity of this communication cannot be guaranteed without using digital
signatures or encryption. The attorney-client privilege may apply to this message, but such privilege may be lost if it is
shared with someone other than an employee of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd. or of another attorney or law firm who

represents you.

From: Renee Guastaferro [mailto:RGuastaferro@sdfnvlaw.com]

Sent: Thursday, October 1, 2015 11:42 AM

To: abarney@anthonybarney.com; hroland@rolandlawfirm.com

Cc: Joshua M. Hood <jhood@sdfnvlaw.com>; Mark Solomon <msolomon@sdfnviaw.com>; Allie Carnival
<acarnival@sdfnvlaw.com>

Subject: In the Matter of Beatrice Davis
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mailto:office@anthonybarney.com

Dear Counsel: Please find attached a copy of the proposed Order from the hearing on September 30, 2015 attached for
your review. Please advise if you sign the order and when it will be available for pick up. Thank you,

Renee Guastaferro, Legal Assistant

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.

Cheyenne West Professional Center | 9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue | Las Vegas, NV 89129
Direct: 702.589.3524 | Office: 702.853.5483 |

Facsimile: 702.853.5485

Email: rguastaferro@sdfnviaw.com | Website: www.sdfnviaw.com

ui www.facebook.com/sdfnviaw

@ www.linkedin.com/company/solomon-dwiggins-&-freer-Itd-

2, . SOLOMON
/[ DWGGS - FREER

\ i

5% Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This message contains confidential information and may also contain information subject to the attorney client
privilege or the attorney work product rules. If you are not the infended recipient, please delete the message
and contact Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd. at 702-853-5483. Any disclosure, copying, distribution, reliance on
or use of the contents of this message by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited.
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cannot satisfy the second element of the specific jurisdiction test. In fact Caroline
has not alleged any cause of action/

Additionally, the exercise of jurisdiction over Christopher is not reasonable
under the circumstances. Here, a Washington resident is seeking information from
a Missouri resident regarding action taken by an Alaska trustee. The only
transaction alleged to have occurred in Nevada is regarding a purported loan of
$25,000.00 to Dunham, which Dunham initiated and acknowledged in open court
was used to pay for legal fees for the trust protector.®® The remaining information
Caroline seeks stems from the acts of the Alaskan trustees in the state of Alaska.
The FHT mandates that a trustee does not have to account for a previous trustee;”
therefore, her requests are more appropriate to the Alaska trustee and are wholly
unrelated to the state of Nevada.

Although it was her burden, Caroline has raised no decisions made or
actions taken by Christopher in Nevada that would subject him to the jurisdiction

of the DC.

D. Caroline has failed to serve pursuant to NRCP 4(i), therefore the
Court must dismiss Christopher from this matter.

* See Appendix IX:1418:3-18,
% See Appendix 1:64: section 7
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Without providing personal service to Christopher, Caroline is attempting to
obtain his personal testimony and documents by order of the DC. NRS§ 14.065
(2) mandates the following regarding personal service:

Personal service of summons upon a party outside this state is sufficient to
confer upon a court of this state jurisdiction over the party so served if the
service is made by delivering a copy of the summons, together with a copy
of the complaint, to the party served in the manner provided by statute or
rule of court for service upon a person of like kind within this state.

Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure (“NRCP”) 4(d) requires the delivery of personal
service.

NRCP 4(i) further provides that:

If a service of the summons and complaint is not made upon a defendant
within 120 days after the filing of the complaint, the action shall be
dismissed as to that defendant without prejudice upon the court’s own
initiative with notice to such party or upon motion, unless the party on
whose behalf such service was required files a motion to enlarge the time
for service and shows good cause why such service was not made within
that period. If the party on whose behalf such service was required fails to
file a motion to enlarge the time for service before the 120-day service
period expires, the court shall take that failure into consideration in
determining good cause for an extension of time. Upon a showing of good
cause, the court shall extend the time for service and set a reasonable date
by which service should be made.

The initial petition was filed February 10, 2015.7° It is well beyond the 120

day time limit provided by NRCP 4(i) and Christopher still has not been

0 See Appendix I:1
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personally served. Caroline has not filed a motion to enlarge the time for service,
and has not shown good cause why such service was not timely made.

The Court has indicated that only a showing of good cause would justify an
untimely service of process.”' This Court outlines a number of considerations that
may govern an analysis of good cause under NRCP 4(i) where no one
consideration is controlling.”* Caroline has not shown good cause why service
was not made. Furthermore, an amended Petition/complaint would not cure the
lack of service on parties to the Petition.”

Even an amendment to the Petition (complaint) will not cure the procedural
defect of lack of service pursuant to NRCP 4(i) for all parties named in the
Petition.

Therefore, Caroline’s action must be dismissed as to Christopher
personally, and in all capacities requiring in personam jurisdiction. Caroline must

refile and personally serve another petition (complaint) for any relief she seeks

" Serimer v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 116 Nev. 507, 516, (Nev. 2000),
%verruling in part Lacey v. Wen-Neva, Inc., 109 Nev. 341, 346, (Nev. 1993).
Id.

7 Lacey v. Wen-Neva, Inc., 109 Nev. 341, 349, 849 P.2d 260, 264-265, 1993 Nev.
LEXIS 58, *14-15 (Nev. 1993), overruled in part by Scrimer v. Eighth Judicial
Dist. Court, 116 Nev. 507, 516, 998 P.2d 1190, 1195-1196, 2000 Nev. LEXIS 68,
*15, 116 Nev. Adv. Rep. 60 (Nev. 2000), citing Baden v. Craig-Hallum, Inc., 115
F.R.D. 582, 586 n.3 (D. Minn. 1987) (citations omitted); see also McGuckin v.
US., 918 F.2d 811, 813 (9th Cir. 1990) (where amended complaint adds a new
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from Christopher. Notably, Christopher requested dismissal of the Petition based
upon lack of personal service including NRCP 12(b)(3) and (4).”* It was denied
despite Caroline’s failure to prove personal service. The DC then refused to
reconsider his request based upon the pending appeal.

E. Indispensible Parties were not named and because they were not
joined; Demanding documents from Christopher’s attorneys is
improper; The Matter must be dismissed.

In his request to dismiss the Petition, Christopher argued that Caroline had
failed to name indispensable parties to whom she was seeking information
pursuant to NRCP 19(a) and (b).

This Court has indicated that “this court has required all persons materially
interested in the subject matter of the suit be made parties so that there is a
complete decree to bind them all. If the interest of absent parties may be affected
or bound by decree, they must be brought before the court or it will not proceed to
decree.”” It also concluded, that “[f]ailure to join an indispensable party is fatal
»76

to a judgment and may be raised by an appellate court sua sponte.

The U.S. Supreme Court has also held the following:

party, plaintiff has 120 days from filing the amended complaint to serve the new

party)
™ See Appendix 11:293-298

7> Olsen Family Trust v. DC, 110 Nev. 548, 553 (1994).
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Joinder as a party, rather than knowledge of a lawsuit and an opportunity to
intervene, is the method by which potential parties are subjected to the
jurisdiction of the court and bound by a judgment or decree. The parties to a
lawsuit presumably know better than anyone else the nature and scope of
relief sought in the action, and at whose expense such relief might be
granted. It makes sense, therefore, to place on them a burden of bringing in
additional parties where such a step is indicated, rather than placing on
potential additional parties a duty to intervene when they acquire
knowledge of the lawsuit.”’

Initially, the FHT had the Alaska Trust Company (“ATC”) serve as trustee,
until its removal in 2011, at which time Alaska USA Trust Company (“AUTC”)
became successor trustee of the FHT (hereinafter collectively as “Alaskan
Trustees”). The Alaskan Trustees are indispensable parties to this matter because
the time period in which the documents and information are being requested from
Caroline were during the period in which they acted as trustees of the FHT,
borrowed funds and made loans. More specifically, Caroline has requested
information regarding approximately two (2) million dollars in alleged loans, all

of which, except for a disbursement of $25,000.00 explained previously, occurred

during the tenure of the Alaskan Trustees and were made by the Alaskan Trustees.

76 Schwob v. Hemsath, 98 Nev. 293, 294 (1982), citing Provident Bank v.
Patterson, 390 U.S. 102 (1968) and Johnson v. Johnson, 93 Nev. 655, 572 P.2d
925 (1977).

7 Martin v. Wilks, 490 U.S. 755, 765 (1988).
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It is important to note that according to the terms of the FHT, no other trustee was
required to account for their actions.”

Even under the DC’s June 24, 2015 order, relief cannot be afforded among
the remaining parties because the Alaskan Trustees were the custodial trustees
who possessed the information requested by Caroline, and under whose tenure the
transactions occurred. Notwithstanding this fact, Caroline has subpoenaed
Christopher’s attorney, Harriet Roland, Esq. as custodian of records of her law
firm in an attempt to obtain copies of documents that were in Christopher’s before
he allegedly became a trust advisor and was merely a beneficiary. Caroline filed a
motion to compel production of documents that Harriet Roland alleged are
confidential and/or subject to attorney client privilege. The DC granted Caroline’s
request,” and such production is to extend to periods almost ten years before
Christopher purportedly became investment trust advisor, and before Dunham
Trust Company allegedly took office.*® Making such a ruling for production of
documents alleged to have been confidential and/or privileged will result in
immediately and irreparable harm to Christopher Davis.

Making a ruling concerning this beneficiary information without including

the Alaskan Trustees as custodial party would expose other named parties to a

® See Footnote 649 Supra
7 See Appendix IX:1540-1541
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substantial risk of incurring double, multiple, or otherwise inconsistent obligations
by reason of the claimed interest to those documents,®’ particularly in light of the
Caroline’s indemnifications of the Alaska Trustees. In other words, the named
parties (over which Caroline requested this Court take jurisdiction) could be
exposed unnecessarily to other court actions in other jurisdictions with double or
multiple obligations by reason of Petitioner’s requested relief and documents from
them for documents that are not in this jurisdiction or in their possession and/or
control. This has already been evidenced by Caroline’s request for sanctions
against Christopher’s counsel; Harriet Roland, Esq.** Despite Christopher having
provided his confidential records to arriet Roland in anticipation of litigation,
Caroline sought sanctions against Harriet Roland to obtain beneficiary information
belonging to Christopher.

Caroline’s Petition must be dismissed, because she has failed to even
request jurisdiction over the Alaskan Trustees, the very indispensable parties she
admits in her Petition borrowed the funds and under whose authority and tenure
all of the loans to Christopher and other persons were made, and who was or is in

; ; ’ 83
possession of the information and documents requested.

SONRCP 19(a)(1).

S NRCP 19(a)(2)(ii)

82 See Appendix VI:897-976
% See Appendix 1:6:3-5.
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IV. Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons Christopher respectfully requests that the Court:

. Find that the DC lacks in rem jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis as trust

investment advisor under the theory of constructive trust;

. Find that the DC lacks in personam jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis

as investment trust advisor under the theory of constructive trust;

. Find that Christopher D. Davis was not personally served;

. Find that the DC lacks in personam jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis

in any role or capacity;

. Order the DC to grant Christopher’s motion to dismiss for lack of

jurisdiction;

. Order the DC to dismiss Caroline’s Petition for failure to join indispensable

parties;

. Order the DC to dismiss Caroline’s petition based on her failure to serve

Christopher D. Davis within 120 days as required by NRCP rule 4(i)

. Order the DC to dismiss all other pending motions which rely on the Order

entered June 24, 2015, including all motions for contempt and motions to

compel as to Christopher Davis and his attorneys;

. Stay all proceedings of the DC until such requested relief can be granted;

and
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10.Any further and proper relief that may be warranted in this matter.

DATED this 7" day of October, 2015.

ROLAND LAW FIBM

y
e 1))

HJrrlet H. Rbl End Esq. o
Nevada Bar No. 5471

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

Respectfully Submitted, )

30

Respectfully Submitted,
ANTHONY L. BARNEY,LTD.

> ,,{ &

Anthony L.Barney, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 8366

3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis
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VERIFICATION

1, Christopher D. Davis, the Petitioner herein, being first duly sworn, depose

‘and say that I make this verification for the reason that I have read the above and

foregoing Writ and know the contents thereof. 1 am informed and believe the

contents stated in the Writ to be true and any matter alleged upon information and
belief, T also believe to be true. Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty

of perjury under the Jaw of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and

correct.

‘!m,,r rf-&&
DATED this /  day of October, 2015.
s ///, ’/‘}
i/, .«l/

AT

Christopher D.Davis

3]
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd., and not

a party to this action. I further certify that on the 8" day of October, 2015, I

served the foregoing EMERGENCY MOTION UNDER NRAP 27(e) FOR

PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION AND/OR MANDAMUS by first

class US mail, postage prepaid, upon the following persons or entities:

Cheryl Davis
5403 West 134 Terrace, Unit 1525
Overland Park, KS 66209

Tarja Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle
Los Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Ace Davis

c/o Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Christopher D. Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Los Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.
Registered Agent for FHT Holdings,
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company

4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2

Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ.
CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GROUP
50 Stephanie Street, Suite 101
Henderson, Nevada 89012
Jonathan@clearcounsel.com
Attorneys for Stephen K. Lehnardt
Via Hand Delivery

Mark Solomon, Esq.

Joshua Hood, Esg.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Attorney for Petitioner Caroline Davis
' Via Hand Delivery
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DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY
SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA

c/o Charlene Renwick, Esq.

Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garofalo

Eighth Judicial District Court
Department 26, Judge Gloria Sturman
200 Lewis Ave

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

7575 Vegas Drive, #150 Via Hand Delivery
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Via Hand Delivery
7
A //\—/
,/‘///‘f/é/{/

Employee of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd.
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This Court should be aware that the only trust with any arguable ties to
Nevada (and which is clearly in dispute as a result of the invalidity of the
purported First Amendment and improper attempt to change in situs to Nevada) is
the FHT. The only other entity located in Nevada is FHT Holdings, LLC, which
is owned by the FHT, and according to the DC is not a party to this matter.’
Despite the narrow language of the June 24, 2015 order, Caroline re-issued
subpoenas to Christopher’s attorney’s improperly requestir_lg, the same and
additional information she originally sought from Christopher,” and is asking for
sanctions against Christopher for his failure to comply.

In July 2015, Christopher filed a petition for reconsideration of the June 24,
2015 order.** Caroline also filed a motion to amend the June 24, 2015 order,
providing evidence to suggest that even Caroline was aware of the defective basis

upon which the DC asserted jurisdiction. At the same time, Caroline admitted that

they did not seek in personam jurisdiction over Christopher.”> - Christopher

opposed Caroline’s Motion to Amend because she had based her request to amend

the order on alleged fraud by Christopher’s attorney.”® Caroline’s statements in

% See Footnote 32 supra.

3 See Subpoena Duces Tecum dated June 25, 2015 on Wiznet.

 See Appendix IV:446-477.

% See Appendix V:718:15-19

36 See Appendix VIII:1332-1357,Ironically, Caroline’s own statements in the
Motion to Amend were misrepresentations to the Court, and, after Christopher

CHRISDAVIS000015
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the Motion to Amend were misrepresentations to the Court, and, after Christopher

made a NCRP 11 request to Caroline’s counsel, they were withdrawn from the
record.”’
Due to the absence of in personam jurisdiction over Christopher, he also

filed a motion for a protective order or to modify/quash the subpoena which
sought to require his submission to a deposition in Nevada or face contempt.38 As
a non-party witness, travel accommodations had not been made for him to appear
in Nevada, which is several hundred miles from his residence.

At the September 2, 2015 hearing on the three petitions/motions: 1) Petition
for Reconsideration, 2) Motion to Amend and 3) Motion for Protective Order or to
Quash or Modify the Subpoena, the Court indicated that it could not rule on the
motions/petitions, but it was allowing discovery under this Court’s holdings in
Viega GmbH v. Eighth Judicial DC, 328 P.3d 1152 (Nev. 2014) (hereinafter
“Viega”) and Fulbright & Jaworski v. Eighth Judicial DC, 342 P.3d 997 (Nev.
2015) (hereinafter “Fulbright”) and stated that the “purpose and intent of taking
jurisdiction initially was to figure out jurisdiction.””” This is an error of law in

that neither of these cases authorized discovery without jurisdiction. Herein, the

made a Rule 11 Request to Caroline’s counsel, they later withdrew their false

statements from the record.
*7 See Appendix VII:1119-1138
¥ See Appendix VIII:1185-1221.
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DC took jurisdiction upon an admittedly incorrect legal basis and then began
enforcing discovery, not to obtain jurisdiction, but to “sue” Christopher without
raising any claims for relief.*

Notably, the DC is aware of its jurisdictional error. It stated, “I was wrong
in accepting Mr. Solomon’s description of that as a constructive trust.
Technically, you’re right [speaking to Christopher’s counsel]. It’s not a
constructive trust...”*' The DC also further acknowledged that FHT Holdings,
LLC was not a party to this matter."”

Despite the realization of its jurisdictional error and the overbreadth of the
subpoena, the DC declined to rule on Christopher’s motion for a protective order
or to quash or modify Caroline’s subpoena. Instead, the DC wanted the discovery
commissioner to rule on any objections at the deposition” in its attempt to have
Christopher submit to its jurisdiction by appearance. In light of the DC’s
admissions and its lack of in personam jurisdiction, Christopher chose not to
appear at the deposition. The DC has various motions pending before it including
a motion for sanctions, a motion for contempt, and a motion to compel which all

stem from Christopher’s alleged lack of compliance with discovery. At the

¥ See Appendix IX:1449: 17-19

*0 See Footnote 23 Supra |

' See Appendix IX:1450: 23-25 and 1451:1

*2 See Appendix IX: 1470: 9-14, 21-23; 1472:12-25.

10

CHRISDAVIS000017



http:matter.42
http:relief.40

aa s~ W NP

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

September 30, 2015 hearing, the DC postponed the motion for sanctions to
October 28, 2015 and indicated that the DC would proceed with discovery based
upon its June 24, 2015 order. The DC also declined to hear the motion for
contempt because Christopher objected to DC Judge Gloria Sturman hearing it
pursuant to NRS§ 22.010 (3). However, the DC sua sponte decided that it would
view the contempt motion as a NRCP 37 motion and alluded to the fact that it will
request or impose sanctions upon Christopher pursuant to NRCP 37, despite the
fact that Caroline never pled such a request.* This had the appearance of
sidestepping the mandates of NRS §22.010 in order to continue to exacerbate the
onerous discovery demands being leveled upon Christopher. NRCP 37 sanctions
typically are initiated only on party motion, which did not occur in this case.

As noted, the DC has improperly attempted to justify jurisdiction under its
alleged interpretation of Viega and Fulbright” and has improperly allowed
discovery to proceed upon Christopher without obtaining proper in personam
jurisdiction. Dismissal of the Original Petition is proper, because there is no basis
for in personam jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis and because personal
service of the petition was not effectuated within the one hundred and twenty

(120) days as required by NRCP 4(1).

“ See Appendix 1X:1437.
* See Appendix IX:1543 and XI:1544-1548

11
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III. LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. The DC does not have proper jurisdiction over any of the parties
under a theory of constructive trust.

NRS § 164.010 provides that the court may take in rem jurisdiction over a
trust. After assuming in rem jurisdiction, a court then has only the power to
adjudicate title to or ownership of trust property without personal liability to the
trustee or any other person involved with the trust.

A constructive trust is entirely different from a trust proceeding in rem. The
Court explained that, “[a] constructive trust is a remedial device by which the
holder of legal title to property is held to be a trustee of that property for the
benefit of another who in good conscience is entitled to it.”* Thivs Court and the
Ninth Circuit have both indicated that a constructive trust is an equitable remedy
to prevent or redress unjust enrichment.”"’

This Court indicated that three specific findings are necessary to impose a

constructive trust, because "[a] constructive trust will arise and affect property

* See Appendix IX:1521-1632.

S DeLee v. Roggen, 111 Nev. 1453, 1457, (Nev. 1995) quoting Locken v. Locken,
98 Nev. 369, 650 P.2d 803 (1982)

7 Taylor Assocs. v. Diamant (In re Advent Mgmt. Corp.), 178 B.R. 480, 486,
1995 Bankr. LEXIS 346, *17, 95 Daily Journal DAR 10590 (B.A.P. 9th Cir. Cal.
1995); Bemis v. Estate of Bemis, 114 Nev. 1021, 1027, 967 P.2d 437, 441, 1998
Nev. LEXIS 132, *10 (Nev. 1998), citing Dan B. Dobbs, Law of Remedies §
4.3(2) (2d ed. 1993) ("The constructive trust is no longer limited to [fraud and]
misconduct cases; it redresses unjust enrichment, not wrongdoing.)"

12
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acquisitions under circumstances where (1) a confidential relationship exists
between the parties; (2) retention of legal title by the holder thereof against
another would be inequitable; and (3) the existence of such a trust is essential to
the effectuation of justice."*® This Court also recognized that “a constructive
trustee have title (not mere possession) to the property” because this “is critical to
the imposition of a constructive trust.”*

The Federal Sixth Circuit clarified that:

A constructive trust is not really a trust. A constructive trust is a legal

fiction, a common-law remedy in equity that may only exist by the grace of

judicial action...a constructive trust, unlike an express trust, is a remedy, it

does not exist until a plaintiff obtains a judicial decision finding him to

be entitled to a jud§ment "impressing" defendant's property or assets with

a constructive trust.’

A constructive trust is very different from an express trust over which in
rem jurisdiction might be imposed under NRS 164.010. A constructive trust is a

remedy, which can be ordered only after 1) jurisdiction has been obtained over the

persons or entities over which the court seeks to impose the constructive trust or

 DeLee v. Roggen, 111 Nev. 1453, 1457, 907 P.2d 168, 170, 1995 Nev. LEXIS
170, *6-7 (Nev. 1995), citing Locken v. Locken, 650 P.2d 803, 805 (Nev. 1982).

¥ See Danning v. Lum's, Inc., 86 Nev. 868, 871, 478 P.2d 166, 167, 1970 Nev.
LEXIS 639, *4 (Nev. 1970), citing Cherno v. Dutch Am. Mercantile Corp., 353
F.2d 147 (2d Cir. 1965); Thompson v. Mobile Producing Co., 163 F.Supp. 402 (D.
Mont. 1958); G. Bogert, Law of Trusts 208 (4th ed. 1963)

a0 XL/Datacomp v. Wilson (In re Omegas Group), 16 F.3d 1443, 1449, 1451, 1994
U.S. App. LEXIS 2682, *22, 1994 FED App. 0051P (6th Cir.), 15, Bankr. L. Rep.

13
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against whom the court is entitled to enter judgment and 2) the elements for
obtaining a constructive trust are satisfied.

Herein, the DC has not obtained in personam jurisdiction over Christopher
as detailed below, nor has it found him to have title to any trust property. As such,
the DC is without the authority to make the findings of fact to satisfy the elements
of imposing a constructive trust upon the parties. Due process was not provided to

the parties before a constructive trust was imposed. A constructive trust is a

remedy the court can pronounce after establishing jurisdiction, not a vehicle to

oain jurisdiction.

B. NRS §163.5555 does not permit the court to assume general or
specific in personam jurisdiction absent proof of personal service
and satisfaction of due process requirements.

Caroline’s most recent attempt to justify jurisdiction over Christopher
appears to be her claim that NRS§ 163.5555 grants in personam jurisdiction over
an investment trust advisor without personal service and without further findings
regarding compliance with the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.”*

As this Court previously held, “jurisdiction over a nonresident defendant is proper

only if the plaintiff shows that the exercise of jurisdiction satisfies the

(CCH) P75,722, 30 Collier Bankr. Cas. 2d (MB) 1019, 25 Bankr. Ct. Dec. 413
g6th Cir. Ky. 1994) (Emphasis added).
! See Appendix IX:1481:9-17
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requirements of Nevada's long-arm statute and does not offend principles of due
process.””> NRS§ 163.5555 states that

If a person accepts an appointment to serve as a trust protector or a trust
adviser of a trust subject to the laws of this State, the person submits to the
jurisdiction of the courts of this State, regardless of any term to the contrary
in an agreement or instrument. A trust protector or a trust adviser may be
made a party to an action or proceeding arising out of a decision or action of
the trust protector or trust adviser.

The second sentence of the statute substantively requires the same contacts as the
test for specific jurisdiction discussed in Fulbright.>
NRS§ 164.005 makes NRS chapters 132, 153, and 155 applicable and
supplemental to NRS chapters 162 through 167. NRS § 155.010 states
Except as otherwise provided in a specific statute relating to the kind of
notice required or otherwise ordered by the court in a particular instance, a
petitioner shall cause notice of the time and place of the hearing of a
petition to be given to each interested person and to every other person

entitled to notice pursuant to this title or his or her attorney if the person has
appeared by attorney or requested that notice be sent to his or her attorney.

* Viega GmbH v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of the State, 328 P.3d 1152, 1156,
(Nev. 2014)

> Fulbright & Jaworski LLP v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 342 P.3d 997, 1002,
(Nev. 2015) (Stating the test for specific jurisdiction: “Unlike general jurisdiction,
specific jurisdiction is proper only where 'the cause of action arises from the
defendant's contacts with the forum." In other words, in order to exercise
specific personal jurisdiction over a nonresident defendant,"[t]he defendant must
purposefully avail himself of the privilege of acting in the forum state or of
causing important consequences in that state. The cause of action must arise from
the consequences in the forum state of the defendant's activities, and those
activities, or the consequences thereof, must have a substantial enough connection
with the forum state to make the exercise of jurisdiction over the defendant
reasonable." Emphasis added, Citations omitted.)
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NRS §155.010 further authorizes notice to be mailed to interested parties
ten (10) days prior to a hearing. NRS §§155.040 and 155.050 provide, however,
that if personal notice is required it may be done by citation served in the same
manner as the personal service of a summons. NRS §153.041 requires that an
action to force an accounting from a trustee be initiated by the issuance of a
citation. Finally, Nevada’s long arm statute NRS §14.065 requires personal
service on a nonresident defendant and adherence to the limitations of due process
in order for the court to exercise jurisdiction.

NRS§164.005 makes NRS §155 applicable to and supplementary to NRS §
163. NRS §155 allows an exception to traditional methods of notice and service
based on the limited in rem nature of probate and trust proceedings. However,
NRS §155 also requires adherence to specific statutes relating to the kind of notice
required for purposes of in personam jurisdiction. This includes Nevada’s long-
arm statute which requires personal service pursuant to NRCP 4 in order to obtain
in personam jurisdiction over a non-resident person or entity.

Caroline’s proposed reading of NRS§ 163.5555 ignores due process in
order to justify her belated requests of in personam jurisdiction over Christopher
without proper service, which were not introduced until after the DC’s June 24,
2015 order. Caroline is now suggesting that mailed notice ten (10) days before a

hearing as provided in NRS§ 155.010 is sufficient to satisfy the requirements of

16
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obtaining in personam jurisdiction over a non-resident. However, due process
cannot be ignored; and therefore, the only two possible justified readings of
NRS§ 163.5555 are that 1) it grants only in rem jurisdiction over the role of an
investment trust advisor and any trust property held by the investment trust
advisor in that capacity based upon mailed notice under NRS§ 155.010, or 2) it
requires personal service and satisfaction of the due process requirements for
establishing jurisdiction over the investment trust advisor if in personam
jurisdiction is sought. If the latter is true, an exercise of in personam jurisdiction
over an investment trust advisor is only appropriate after due process requirements
are met requiring: 1) proof of personal service; 2) a finding that the defendant has
purposefully availed himself of the forum state; 3) proof that the cause of action
arises out of the defendant’s contacts with the state, or as the statute reads, the
action or proceeding is one arising out of a decision or action of the trust advisor;
and finally 4) proof that the exercise of jurisdiction would not offend traditional
notion of fair play and substantial justice.

This position is also supported by the fact that NRS§ 155 requires the
issuance of a citation in the same manner as personal service of a summons for
certain actions that require in personam jurisdiction. The Nevada legislature
understood that the relaxed standards of notice under NRS§ 155.010 do not satisfy

due process for the purpose of obtaining in personam jurisdiction. For example, a

17
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citation is required for an action regarding conversion of estate assets,”® and an
action to compel an accounting from a trustee.” Caroline’s recent position that
NRS § 163.5555 grants general in personam jurisdiction without the need for
personal service and additional findings is simply unconstitutional. Additionally,

Caroline’s reading of the statute is contrary to public policy and would make

Nevada an extremely unfavorable jurisdiction for investment trust advisors.>

C. Absent Caroline’s unfounded proposal of the automatic grant of
jurisdiction, the DC has no in personam jurisdiction over
Christopher D. Davis.

This Court stated “[a]s a question of law, the district court's determination

of personal jurisdiction is reviewed de novo, even in the context of a writ

9557

petition. Furthermore, “[iJt is the plaintiff's burden to establish the court's

558

personal jurisdiction over a defendant. In order to overcome a motion to

* See NRS§ 143.110

> See NRS§ 153.041

% Automatic general in personam jurisdiction would discourage potential trust
advisors from accepting such a position. No reasonable person, let alone a skilled
investment advisor would willingly subject themselves to Caroline’s proposed
jurisdiction and risk suit in Nevada for any cause of action regardless of how
related it is to the advisor’s contact with the state. In short Caroline’s proposed
reading of NRS§ 163.5555 would undermine the Nevada’s position as a leader in
trust law, and discourage the use of trust advisors and trust protectors in the state
of Nevada.

> Viega GmbH v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of the State, 328 P.3d 1152, 1156,
(Nev. 2014)

*Doe v. Unocal Corp., 248 F.3d 915, 922, 2001 (9th Cir. Cal. 2001). See also,
Fulbright & Jaworski LLP v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 342 P.3d 997, 1001

18
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dismiss based on lack of jurisdiction the plaintiff needs “to make a prima facie
showing of either general or specific personal jurisdiction by "produc[ing] some
evidence in support of all facts necessary for a finding of personal jurisdiction."*

“Jurisdiction over a nonresident defendant is proper only if the plaintiff
shows that the exercise of jurisdiction satisfies the requirements of Nevada's long-
arm statute and does not offend principles of due process.”® Nevada’s long-arm
statute reaches the outer limits of the due process clause of the Fourteenth
Amendment and requires personal service and minimum contacts with the forum
state. Caroline failed to establish a basis for jurisdiction over Christopher.

In personam jurisdiction is either specific or general. General jurisdiction
requires the defendant to have substantial, systematic and continuous contacts
with the forum state so that the defendant is essentially at home in the forum
state.’ The US Supreme Court has stated:

Only a limited set of affiliations with a forum will render a defendant

amenable to all-purpose jurisdiction there. ‘For an individual, the paradigm
forum for the exercise of general jurisdiction is the individual’s domicile;

(Nev. 2015) (stating, “When a nonresident defendant challenges personal
jurisdiction, the plaintiff bears the burden of showing that jurisdiction exists.”
Citation omitted)

> Id. Citation omitted.

60 Viega GmbH v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of the State, 328 P.3d 1152, 1156,
(Nev. 2014)

U Daimler AG v. Bauman, 134 S. Ct. 746, 760, (U.S. 2014)
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for a corporation, it is an equivalent place, one in which the corporation is
fairly regarded as at home.”®

General jurisdiction as a practical matter typically only applies to corporations.
Even so, Christopher is not domiciled in Nevada, and therefore is not subject to

general jurisdiction.®’

There was no evidence presented that suggests substantial,

systematic, or continuous contacts within the state of Nevada by Christopher.
To determine specific jurisdiction the Ninth Circuit applies a three part test:
(1) The nonresident defendant must do some act or consummate some
transaction with the forum or perform some act by which he purposefully
avails himself of the privilege of conducting activities in the forum, thereby
invoking the benefits and protections|[;] (2) the claim must be one which
arises out of or results from the defendant's forum-related activities[; and]
(3) exercise of jurisdiction must be reasonable.”’

This court applied a similar test in both the Viega and Fulbright cases.®
The DC did not find any specific acts that Christopher performed as an

alleged investment trust advisor in Nevada through which he purposefully availed

himself or conducted activities in Nevada. In fact, the Court only assumed that

such activities had occurred by virtue of the fact that he was allegedly appointed

®2 Id. Citation omitted, emphasis added.

% See Appendix VI:977-979

% Ballard v. Savage, 65 F.3d 1495, 1498, (9th Cir. Cal. 1995)

% Viega GmbH v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of the State, 328 P.3d 1152 (Nev.
2014), Fulbright & Jaworski LLP v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 342 P.3d 997
(Nev.2015)
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as an investment trust advisor under what the FHT draftsman conceded was a
defective first amendment.®

The second prong of the test is whether the cause of action arises out of the
defendant’s forum related activities. The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals (“Ninth
Circuit”) has stated that ““we rely on a ‘but for’ test to determine whether a
particular claim arises out of forum-related activities and thereby satisfies the

"7 Here, Caroline did not and still

second requirement for specific jurisdiction.
has not provided personal service upon any party to this action including
Christopher D. Davis and FHT Holdings LLC. Caroline did not state any acts
effectuated by Christopher or his consent that would satisfy the “but for” test, and
therefore there is no general or specific in personam jurisdiction.

Even assuming the most expansive and unlikely reading of NRS§ 163.5555,
which is that the acceptance of the position of an investment trust advisor is a
minimum contact sufficient to satisfy the first element of the test, Caroline has not
carried her burden to satisfy the second prong of the specific jurisdiction test. She
must demonstrate that the cause of action arises out of Christopher’s actions taken

or decisions made as investment trust advisor. Here, Caroline has not alleged that

her cause of action arises out of any such actions by Christopher, and therefore

°® See Footnote 20 Supra
°7 Ballard v. Savage, 65 F.3d 1495, 1500, (9th Cir. Cal. 1995)
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS
Case No.:

Petitioner

VS. Eighth Judicial District Court

Case No.: P-15-083867-T (In re
the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, dated July 28,
2000)

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN'AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK,
AND THE HONORABLE JUDGE
GLORIA J. STURMAN, Respondent

and

CAROLINE DAVIS, Real Party in Interest
|

EMERGENCY WRIT UNDER NRAP 27(e)

PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION AND/OR MANDAMUS

ACTION NECESSARY ON OR BEFORE OCTOBER 23, 2015

I. NRAP 27(E) CERTIFICATE

Petitioners respectfully certify that this writ is filed on an emergency basis

requiring relief in less than fourteen days to avoid irreparable harm. Immediate

relief i1s necessary because the Eighth Judicial District Court (“DC”) continues to
improperly assert jurisdiction over parties that are not under the jurisdiction of the
DC. The DC continues to hear discovery matters and has allowed motions to
compel and for sanctions against Christopher for his alleged non-compliance with

discovery when he has not submitted to the jurisdiction of this Court. This Court
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has made no findings regarding acts, which would enable the assertion of either in
rem or in personam jurisdiction. At the September 30, 2015 hearing, the DC
scheduled deadlines for initial disclosures on October 23, 2015 and motions to
compel and for sanctions against Christopher on October 28, 2015. Therefore,
this writ is necessary and warranted on an expedited basis.

A. NRAP 27(e)(3)(a) Telephone Numbers and Office Addresses of The
Attorneys for the Parties.

Harriet H. Roland, Esq. Anthony L. Barney, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 5471 Nevada Bar No. 8366

ROLAND LAW FIRM, INC. ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.
2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105 3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Henderson, NV 89074 Las Vegas, NV §9102

Telephone: (702) 452-1500 Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903 Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis Attorney for Christopher D. Davis
Mark Solomon, Esq. DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY
Joshua Hood, Esq. ' SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, | c¢/o Charlene Renwick, Esq.

LTD. Lee, Hernandez, LLandrum & Garofalo
9060 W. Cheyenne Ave. 7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, NV 89129 Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Attorneys for Caroline Davis

B. Facts Showing the Existence and Nature of the Claimed Emergency (NRAP

27(e)(3)(b)

The DC’s June 24, 2015 order purported to assume jurisdiction over the

FHT under the remedial theory of constructive trust. An appeal was filed based
upon a lack of jurisdiction, including the fact that there is no in personam

jurisdiction over Christopher either as an investment trust advisor or as an officer

i
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of FHT Holdings, LLC, which the DC admitted was not a party to the action.’
The DC later acknowledged that its assumption of jurisdiction was “wrong.”?
Despite this admission, the DC has allowed discovery to proceed. Therefore,
emergency relief is warranted and respectfully requested herein.

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS (“Christopher”), by and through his attorneys
HARRIET H. ROLAND, Esq., of the ROLAND LAW FIRM and ANTHONY L.
BARNEY, Esq., of the law office of ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD., hereby
submits his Petition for Writ of Prohibition and/or Mandamus pursuant to NRS
34.330 and NRAP 21 to prohibit the Eighth Judicial District Court, Department
26, the Honorable Judge Gloria J. Sturman (hereinafter, “DC”) from exercising
jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis.  This pleading is based on the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities herein, exhibits attached hereto, and any

oral argument that will be heard in this matter.

I1. Notification of Parties pursuant to NRAP 27(e)(3)(¢c)

Christopher has notified the parties of the filing of this Writ of Prohibition
and/or Mandamus. This notification was made by electronic mail.” Service of the
Writ will take place by hand delivery upon the attorneys and by mail to the other

interested parties.

! See Petitioner’s Appendix (“Appendix”) 1X:79:21
% See Appendix IX:1450:23-25.

iii
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Dated this 7" day of October 2015

Respectfully Submitted,

ROLA!ND L

)
M// MW 6 )

Harriet H. Rolénd Esq

Nevada Bar No. 5471

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

Respectfully Submitted,
ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.

Anthony L. Barnéy, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8366

3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I. T hereby certify that this brief complies with the formatting requirements of
NRAP 32(a)(4), the typeface requirements of NRAP 32(a)(5) and the type style
requirements of NRAP 32(a)(6) because:
[X] This brief has been prepared in a proportionally spaced typeface using
Times New Roman in Microsoft Word in 14 point font.
2. 1 further certify that this brief complies with the page- or type-volume
limitations of NRAP 32(a)(7) because, excluding the parts of the brief exempted
by NRAP 32(a)(7)(C), it:

[X] Does not exceed 30 pages.

3 See Appendix IX:1550
v
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3. Finally, I hereby certify that I have read this Writ, and to the best of my
knowledge, information, and belief, it is not frivolous or interposed for any
improper purpose. I further certify that this Writ complies with all applicable
Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in particular NRAP 28(e)(1), which
requires every assertion in the Writ regarding matters in the record to be supported
by a reference to the page and volume number, if any, of the transcript or
appendix where the matter relied on is to be found. I understand that I may be
subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying Writ is not in conformity

with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Dated this /' day of October, 2015.
i

Respectfully Submltte Respectfully Submitted,

AND LAW /7/ ANTHONY L. BARNEY,LTD:
Hamet H Roland Esq - Anthony L7 Bafney, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 5471 Nevada Bar No. 8366
2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105 3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Henderson, NV 89074 Las Vegas, NV §9102
Telephone: (702) 452-1500 Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903 Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

A%
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L.

ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO NRAP 28.2

The undersigned attorneys hereby certify that they have read the Writ.

2. To the best of the attorneys’ knowledge, information and belief, the Writ is

not frivolous or interposed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to

cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation.

. The Writ complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of Appellate

Procedure, including the requirement of Rule 28(e) that every assertion in
the briefs regarding matters in the record be supported by a reference to the

page and volume number, if any, of the appendix where the matter relied on

is to be found.

4. The Writ complies with the formatting requirements of Rule 32(a)(4)-(6),

and either the page- or type-volume limitations stated in Rule 32(a)(7).

DATED this

Respectfully Submitted,
ROLAND LAW F}RMJ / H
s

g

Harriet H. Rol aud: Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 5471

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

day of October, 2015.

Respectfully Submitted,
ANTHONY L-BARNEY, LTD.

Anthony I Bdrney; Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 8366

3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION

On June 24, 2015, the DC filed an order (hereinafter, “June 24, 2015
order”) later entered confirming Dunham Trust Company (hereinafter, “Dunham”)
as the trustee of the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust dated July 28, 2000
as amended on February 24, 2014 (“FHT”). Despite Christopher’s motion to
dismiss based upon the failure of a condition precedent pursuant to the terms of
the Trust, failure to join indispensable parties, lack of jurisdiction over the person,
and insufficiency of service and insufficiency of service of process, the court
purportedly assumed jurisdiction over the Trust under a theory of constructive
trust pled orally by Caroline Davis (“Caroline”).

Christopher filed an appeal based on NRS 155.190 (h) which makes an
order instructing or appointing a trustee an appealable order.” The appeal is still
pending; however, neither NRS 132.355 nor NRS 163.5545 identifies an
investment trust advisor as a trustee. Additionally, case law seems to indicate that
a trust advisor is something less than a trustee or a quasi-trustee.” Therefore, to

the extent that a trust advisor does not satisfy the meaning of NRS §155.190(h) so

' See Appendix I11:406:6 and Appendix II1: 437:18-19.
2 See Case #68542
3 Wilmington Trust Co. v. Stuart, 1983 Del. Ch. LEXIS 524, *25 (Del. Ch. July

19, 1983), describing a trust advisor as a “quasi-trustee”.
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that the purported assumption of jurisdiction over Christopher does not qualify as
an appealable order under NRS § 155.190(h), Christopher submits this writ of
prohibition and/or mandamus.

II. FACTS PERTAINING TO WRIT

Caroline’s initial petition filed in the DC did not allege any claims
(hereinafter “Petition”).* Caroline requested the DC to take jurisdiction over the
following alleged parties: Dunham Trust Company (as trustee), Stephen K.
Lehnardt (as trust protector), and Christopher D. Davis (as investment trust
advisor), and all other parties seemingly related to the FHT to obtain documents
from various parties related to the FHT.

Notably, the only acts alleged against Christopher were those purportedly in
his individual capacity, as the beneficiary or trustee of another trust, or as the sole
manager of a Missouri Limited Liability Company.® The DC was made aware of
a pending lawsuit in Missouri, and noted that these alleged acts were in Missouri

where Christopher had contact with those states.’

* See Appendix I

> See Appendix 1:10: 3-20.

® See Appendix I: 8-9; Paragraphs 23, 24.

7 See Appendix IX:1408: lines 3-20.
Mr. Barney: “Well, here’s the thing. When we didn’t have jurisdiction and
this case is a perfect example. They’ve actually filed suit out in Missouri
and do you know why they filed suit in Missouri, Your Honor? Because

CHRISDAVIS000009
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All other references to Christopher in the Petition were to argue to the DC
his purported roles in relation to the FHT.® The Petition did not allege claims or
acts performed by any party in Nevada. The Petition was mailed to various
parties, however personal service was not effectuated on any party.” Christopher
is not a resident and does not reside in Nevada.'®

The FHT was an express trust Settled by a Missouri resident under Alaska
law with an Alaskan Trustee.'' The FHT requires the consent of all beneficiaries
thereunder and the opinion or advice from legal counsel before the trustee is
enabled to change the situs from Alaska.”” The Alaska Trustee resigned on

December 5, 2013, and thereafter the FHT situs was allegedly changed on

when they raise the issue that they’re trying to get jurisdiction over
Christopher as — in his capacity belonging to the revocable trust and other
capacities, they realize: You know what? We can’t get that here so we’re—

(33

Court: Oh no. They’re — that’s clear. That’s —

Court: “That’s clear. I mean, I don’t think anybody’s disputing —*

Court: “That’s Missouri. That’s Missouri. But, you know, he’s at least
got contacts with those states...”

5 See Appendix [:3:12 and 1:8:26.
? The Court can take judicial notice under NRS 47.130 that neither a summons nor

a citation was ever issued or served upon any party.
' See Appendix VI:978:27.
'"'See Appendix I:13.
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February 24, 2014." The Alaska trustee had not obtained an opinion from their
own counsel as required by the FHT' regarding the purported change in situs that
allegedly occurred without the consent of all beneficiaries, including Tarja
Davis."”

Upon receiving the mailed Petition, Christopher filed a motion to dismiss
based upon the lack of jurisdiction over FHT and over him in any capacity,
because 1) the Alaskan trustees of who were in possession of the documents being
requested were indispensable custodial parties'®; 2) the change in situs was
ineffective due to a lack of consent by all beneficiaries and the lack of opinion
from the Alaskan Trustee’s legal counsel.'” Additionally, Christopher requested
dismissal because there was no personal service upon him in any capacity.’®
Caroline opposed the motion to dismiss.'”

At the hearing on the motion to dismiss, Stephen K. Lehnardt (trust
protector and drafter of the FHT) admitted through his counsel that the disputed

first amendment and purported change in situs was not done pursuant the terms of

'2See Appendix I1:110.

" See Appendix 1:133-144

'* See Appendix VI1:977-979

" See Appendix V:478-483

' See Appendix I1:288.

"7 See Appendix I:110.

'® See Appendix 11:298:9-12 and Appendix I11:350-375
"% See Appendix 11:309-321
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the FHT.*® The DC did note there were insufficient facts to assume jurisdiction
over Stephen K. Lehnardt as the trust protector until a more definite statement had
been made.*' After asserting jurisdiction under the theory of constructive trust, the
DC later admittedly “assumed” that Christopher had been acting in Nevada
although no facts were presented or findings made for such an assumption.*

On September 2, 2015, the DC suddenly announced that Christopher could
be sued in Nevada, and when clarification was sought concerning this statement,
the DC clarified that to the extent that Christopher performed acts as an
investment trust advisor, the District court had jurisdiction.23 However, the DC
never identified any acts that were performed by Christopher.

Caroline’s counsel then sent an ex parte letter to the DC requesting certain
additions be added to the pending June 24, 2015 order — mainly to include the
release of documents from Christopher in other roles in which Christopher was
alleged to have served. However, the DC did not have jurisdiction over him in

any of these alleged capacities.” After becoming aware of this ex parte letter,

% See Appendix II1:391: 3-25, 392:1-4, see also Appendix 111:407:17-31

?! See Appendix I11:425:4-11.

2 See Appendix 1X:1440: 23-25, 1441:1 where the DC indicates, ... he’s been
acting here, I have to assume because stuff has been going on, apparently giving
instruction to Dunham and I just think that means he’s consented to the
jurisdiction of this Court.”

3 See Appendix 111:425:18-24, 426:5-25, and 427:1-3.

* See Appendix VII:1063-1069.
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Christopher’s counsel requested the opportunity to address the new issues raised
in Caroline’s counsel’s ex parte letter.”

Despite this request, the DC adopted Caroline’s requested changes and
purportedly expanded its order for production from Christopher as manager of
FHT Holdings, LLC via hand-written interlineations on the June 24, 2015 order®
thereby expanding its original jurisdictional assertions during the prior oral

27

hearing.”” The DC’s interlineated order was particularly egregious in light of its

later admission that FHT Holdings, LLC was not a party.”®

* See Appendix VII:1073-1074

6 See Appendix [11:435-439

*7 See Appendix I11:430:23-25 and 431:1-4

8 Appendix IX:

-Page 1470, lines 9-14, 21-23
Mr. Barney: “...He [Chris] didn’t get served with a summons. So, the
question then becomes, because he didn’t get served under Rule — service of
process, how could there be in personam jurisdiction over Christopher
Davis and then subject him tomorrow to inquiry into that role?”

Court: “Well FHIT [sic] is not a party. FHT is a Nevada Corporation...
-Page 1472, lines 12-25

Mr. Barney: “If they want to get hat [sic] information, then they need to
serve him personally under Rule 4 if they want to get it as an officer of
manager of the company. This —*

Court: “Because it’s not a party.”

Mr. Barney: “Yeah, This Court is assuming that it has jurisdiction over the
FHT Holdings and even if the Court goes in that direction, my question still

CHRISDAVIS000013
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No findings of personal service or any other findings pursuant to NRS
14.065 have been made regarding Christopher in any of his alleged roles.”

The DC continues to issue in personam orders and will likely shortly issue
orders on October 28, 2015 compelling discovery and discovery sanctions where
proper jurisdiction is absent. Accordingly, Christopher filed an appeal on August
4, 2015 pursuant to NRS 155.190(h). However, such an appeal does not stay the
proceedings if he is deemed a trustee for purposes of NRS 164.010.

Prior to the issuance of the DC’s June 24, 2015 order, Caroline issued
defective electronic subpoenas dated June 8, 2015.°° These subpoenas requested
documents from Christopher’s attorneys who have a duty of confidentiality to

31

their client.” Additionally, Caroline sent notice of Christopher’s deposition

without any restrictions.

goes to the fact that this is improper in that they’re seeking to get
documents —

Court: “I’m late for a meeting. So, that would be my ruling is that if — my
jurisdiction over Christopher Davis, I indicated, was only in his capacity as
the investment advisor...”

* Christopher respectfully requests that the Appellate Court take judicial notice
pursuant to NRS 47.130 that a summons and/or citation has been issued or served.
% See Subpoena Duces Tecum issued June 8, 2015 on Wiznet. The subpoenas
were defective because they sought production on May 18, 2015, (prior to the
issuance of the subpoenas) and were electronically served in contravention of
g\]Ievada Electronic Filing and Conversion Rules (“NEFCR”) 9.

Id.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS, Case No.:Ebzsionically Filed
Oct 08 2015 09:05 a.m.

Appellant, EighthJu@E@%‘f@Eﬁg@S%ﬁ%ﬁn
V. Case No.: P-15- [ In?eOurt

the Beatrice B. Davis Family

CAROLINE DAVIS, Heritage Trust, dated July 28,
2000)
Respondent.
EXHIBITS TO

EMERGENCY MOTION UNDER NRAP 27(e)
FOR 1) STAY PENDING APPEAL AND 2) AFFIRMATIVE RELIEF

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Exhibit | Title of Document Bates Numbers
1 Emergency Writ Under NRAP 27(e) Petition for 1-40

Writ of Prohibition and/or Mandamus Action
Necessary On or Before October 23, 2015

2 Email dated October 5, 2015 from Anthony L. 41-43
Barney, Esq.

3 Email dated October 5, 2015 from Dana Dwiggins, 44-45
Esq.

4 September 2, 2015 Transcript 46-131

5 Christopher D. Davis’ Motion for Protective Order 132-168
and to Quash or Modify the Subpoena

6 Notice of Petition and Petition to Stay Discovery 169-202

Until the August 19, 2015 Hearing on the Motion for
Reconsideration, or in the Alternative, Petition for
Protective Order from Discovery by Subpoena

7 September 30, 2015 Court Minutes 203-204

8 Notice of Entry of Order, filed with Order 205-210

9 Subpoenas Duces Tecum dated June 25, 2015 211-234

10 September 16, 2015 Court Minutes 235-237

11 Petition to Assume Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. 238-518
1
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Davis Family Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as
Amended on February 24, 2014; to Assume
Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis as Investment
Trust Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as
Distribution Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham
Trust Company as Directed Trustee; and for
Immediate Disclosure of Dcouments and

Information from Christopher D. Davis

12

Second Amended Notice of Hearing on Petition to
Assume Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. Davis
Family Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as
Amended on February 24, 2014; to Assume
Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis as Investment
Trust Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as
Distribution Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham
Trust Company as Directed Trustee; and for
Immediate Disclosure of Dcouments and
Information from Christopher D. Davis

519-523

13

Declaration of Christopher Davis

524-526

14

Christopher D. Davis’ Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to
NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19

527-552

15

Christopher D. Davis’ Reply to Caroline Davis’
Opposition to His Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to
NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19

553-578

16

Opposition to Christopher D. Davis’ Motion to
Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19

579-591

17

Transcript of Proceedings — Wednesday, April 22,
2015

592-650
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that I am an employee of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd., and not
a party to this action. | further certify that on the 8" day of October, 2015, |

served the foregoing EXHIBITS TO EMERGENCY MOTION UNDER

NRAP 27(e) FOR 1) STAY PENDING APPEAL AND 2) AFFIRMATIVE

RELIEF by first class US mail, postage prepaid, upon the following persons or
entities or as otherwise noted:

Cheryl Davis
5403 West 134 Terrace, Unit 1525
Overland Park, KS 66209

Tarja Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Las Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Ace Davis

c/o Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Christopher D. Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Los Angeles, California 90077
And
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514 West 26" Street, #3E
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.

Registered Agent for FHT Holdings, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability

Company
4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ. Via Hand Delivery
CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GROUP

50 Stephanie Street, Suite 101

Henderson, Nevada 89012

Jonathan@clearcounsel.com

Attorneys for Stephen K. Lenhardt

Mark Solomon, Esq. Via Hand Delivery
Joshua Hood, Esq.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.

9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Attorney for Petitioner Caroline Davis

DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY Via Hand Delivery
SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA

c/o Charlene Renwick, Esq.

Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garofalo

7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
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